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Independent Auditors’ Report  

Shareholders and the Board of Directors  
North State Bancorp  
Raleigh, NC  

Opinion  
We have audited the consolidated financial statements of North State Bancorp, which comprise the consolidated  
balance  sheets  as  of  December  31,  2021  and  2020,  and  the  related  consolidated  statements  of  operations,  
comprehensive income, changes in shareholders' equity, and cash flows for the years then ended, and the related  
notes to the consolidated financial statements.  

In  our  opinion,  the  accompanying  consolidated  financial  statements  present  fairly,  in  all  material  respects,  the  
financial position of North State Bancorp as of December 31, 2021 and 2020, and the results of its operations and  
its cash flows for the years then ended in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United  
States of America.  

Basis for Opinion  
We conducted our audits in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America  
(GAAS). Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditors' Responsibilities for the  
Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements section of our report. We are required to be independent of North  
State Bancorp and to meet our other ethical responsibilities, in accordance with the relevant ethical requirements  
relating to our audits. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide  
a basis for our audit opinion.  

Responsibilities of Management for the Consolidated Financial Statements  
Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the consolidated financial statements in  
accordance  with  accounting  principles  generally  accepted  in  the  United  States  of  America,  and  for  the  design,  
implementation,  and  maintenance  of  internal  control  relevant  to  the  preparation  and  fair  presentation  of  
consolidated financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.  

In  preparing  the  consolidated  financial  statements,  management  is  required  to  evaluate  whether  there  are  
conditions or events, considered in the aggregate, that raise substantial doubt about North State Bancorp's ability  
to continue as a going concern for the year after the date that the consolidated financial statements are available  
to be issued.  

Auditors' Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements  
Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements as a whole  
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditors' report that includes  
our  opinion.  Reasonable  assurance  is  a  high  level  of  assurance,  but  is  not  absolute  
 

assurance, and therefore is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with GAAS will always detect a  
material  misstatement  when  it  exists.  The  risk  of  not  detecting  a  material  misstatement  resulting  from  fraud  is  
DHG is registered in the U.S. Patent and Trademark Office to Dixon Hughes Goodman LLP.  
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higher  than  for  one  resulting  from  error,  as  fraud  may  involve  collusion,  forgery,  intentional  omissions,  
misrepresentations,  or  the  override  of  internal  control.  Misstatements  are  considered  material  if  there  is  a  
substantial  likelihood  that,  individually  or  in  the  aggregate,  they  would  influence  the  judgment  made  by  a  
reasonable user based on the consolidated financial statements.  

In performing an audit in accordance with GAAS, we:  

 Exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit.  
 Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, whether  
due  to  fraud  or  error,  and  design  and  perform  audit  procedures  responsive  to  those  risks.  Such  
procedures  include  examining,  on  a  test  basis,  evidence  regarding  the  amounts  and  disclosures  in  the  
consolidated financial statements.  

 Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that  
are  appropriate  in  the  circumstances,  but  not  for  the  purpose  of  expressing  an  opinion  on  the  
effectiveness of North State Bancorp's internal control. Accordingly, no such opinion is expressed.  

 Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant accounting  
estimates made by management, as well as evaluate the overall presentation of the consolidated financial  
statements.  

 Conclude  whether,  in  our  judgment,  there  are  conditions  or  events,  considered  in  the  aggregate,  that  
raise  substantial  doubt  about  North  State  Bancorp's  ability  to  continue  as  a  going  concern  for  a  
reasonable period of time.  

 
We  are  required  to  communicate  with  those  charged  with  governance  regarding,  among  other  matters,  the  
planned scope and timing of the audit, significant audit findings, and certain internal control related matters that  
we identified during the audit.  
 

 
Raleigh, NC  
March 23, 2022  

 

DHG is registered in the U.S. Patent and Trademark Office to Dixon Hughes Goodman LLP.  
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CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS 
December 31, 2021 and 2020 

 

 

 

 

 

                                       
                                      
                                                  

                                              
                                           

                                          
                                    

                                             
                                

                                             
                                              

                                         
                                         

                                                      
                                            

                    

 

                                
                                    
                                        
                        

                                                   
                                                        

                                                  
                                        

                                             
                        

                                                  

                                                      

                                          
                                        

                                                      
                                         
                     

 

    
 

 
 
 
 
 
  

NORTH STATE BANCORP

2021 2020 

ASSETS 
(Dollars in thousands) 

Cash and due from banks 
Interest-earning deposits with banks 
Certificates of deposit with banks 
Investment securities available for sale, at fair value 
Investment securities held to maturity, at amortized cost 
Loans held for sale 
Loans held for investment 

Less allowance for loan losses 
Net loans 

Accrued interest receivable 
Federal Home Loan Bank and Federal Reserve stock, at cost 
Premises and equipment, net 
Bank owned life insurance 
Prepaid for unexchanged common stock 
Other assets 

Total Assets 

$ 

$ 

9,426 $ 12,486 
366,040 97,980 

101 100 
4,252 1,118 

43,561 33,861 
7,218 27,500 

917,982 954,864 
6,742 6,518 

911,240 948,346 
2,753 3,615 
1,630 1,884 

22,617 22,918 
22,185 16,884 

3 125 
4,829 5,926 

1,395,855 $ 1,172,743 

LIABILITIES AND SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY 
Deposits: 

Demand 
Savings, money market and NOW 
Time 
Total deposits 

$ 513,146 $ 428,154 
716,306 579,316 
60,886 64,873 

1,290,338 1,072,343 

Accrued interest payable 
Payable for unexchanged common stock 
Short-term borrowings 
Long-term borrowings, net 
Accrued expenses and other liabilities 

Total Liabilities 

394 
3 

239 
33,573 
6,151 

1,330,698 

535 
125 
319 

33,556 
6,605 

1,113,483 

Commitments - -

Shareholders' equity: 
Preferred stock, no par value, 1,000,000 shares authorized, none issued - -
Common stock, no par value; 8,136,382 shares authorized; 6,184,714 and 6,095,594  
shares issued and outstanding, December 31, 2021 and 2020, respectively 
Retained earnings 
Accumulated other comprehensive income (loss) 

Total Shareholders' Equity 
Total Liabilities and Shareholders' Equity $ 

11,215 9,668 
53,973 49,579 

(31) 13 
65,157 59,260 

1,395,855 $ 1,172,743 

See accompanying notes. 
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NORTH STATE BANCORP 
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS 
Years Ended December 31, 2021 and 2020 

December 31, 
2021 2020 

INTEREST INCOME 
(Dollars in thousands, except per share data) 

Loans 
Loans held for sale 

$ 42,674 $ 40,683 
498 895 

Investments 
Dividends and interest-earning deposits 

Total interest income 

692 
443 

44,307 

604 
601 

42,783 

INTEREST EXPENSE 
Savings, money market and NOW 
Time deposits 
Short-term borrowings 
Long-term borrowings 

Total interest expense 

1,597 
613 
-

1,202 
3,412 

1,734 
848 
185 

2,076 
4,843 

Net interest income 40,895 37,940 

PROVISION FOR LOAN LOSSES - 5,040 

NET INTEREST INCOMEAFTER PROVISION FOR LOAN LOSSES 40,895 32,900 

NON-INTEREST INCOME 
Fees from mortgage operations 
Fees and gains on sales from SBA operations 
Other 

12,152 
2,918 
2,469 

20,413 
2,705 
1,824 

Total non-interest income 17,539 24,942 

NON-INTEREST EXPENSE 
Salaries and employee benefits 
Occupancy and equipment 
Data processing and other outsourced services 
Net cost of foreclosed assets 
Other 

24,655 
3,532 
6,610 

6 
7,476 

24,938 
3,739 
6,063 

5 
7,849 

Total non-interest expense 
NET INCOME 

42,279 42,594 
$ 16,155 $ 15,248 

NET INCOME PER COMMON SHARE: 
Basic $ 2.64 $ 2.53 

WEIGHTED AVERAGE COMMON SHARES OUTSTANDING: 
Basic 6,126,429 6,035,568 

See accompanying notes. 

5 



 
 

  
 
 

                                    

                          
                           

                                

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 

 
 

NORTH STATE BANCORP 
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME 
Years Ended December 31, 2021 and 2020 

December 31, 
2021 2020 

(Dollars in thousands) 

Net income $ 16,155 $ 15,248 

Other comprehensive (loss) income:
  Investment securities:
    Unrealized holding (loss) gain on available for sale securities 
  Total other comprehensive (loss) income 

(44) 
(44) 

37
37 

Comprehensive income $ 16,111 $ 15,285 

See accompanying notes. 
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NORTH STATE BANCORP 
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CHANGES IN SHAREHOLDERS’ EQUITY 
Years Ended December 31, 2021 and 2020 

Common Stock 
Accumulated 

other Total 
comprehensive shareholders' 

Shares Amount Retained earnings income (loss) equity 
(Dollars in thousands) 

Balance as of December 31, 2019 6,004,031 $ 8,336 $ 42,661 $ (24) $ 50,973 
Net income - - 15,248 - 15,248 
Other comprehensive income - - - 37 37 
Cash distributions to shareholders - - (8,330) - (8,330) 
Issuance of shares to ESOP 60,190 924 - - 924 
Issuance of common stock 31,373 408 - - 408 
Balance as of December 31, 2020 6,095,594 $ 9,668 $ 49,579 $ 13 $ 59,260 

Net income - - 16,155 - 16,155 
Other comprehensive loss - - - (44) (44) 
Cash distributions to shareholders - - (11,761) - (11,761) 
Issuance of shares to ESOP 56,381 1,032 - - 1,032 
Issuance of common stock 32,739 515 - - 515 
Balance as of December 31, 2021 6,184,714 $ 11,215 $ 53,973 $ (31) $ 65,157 

See accompanying notes. 
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NORTH STATE BANCORP 
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS 
Years Ended December 31, 2021 and 2020 

December 31, 
2021 2020 

(Dollars in thousands) 

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES: 
Net income $ 16,155 $ 15,248 

  Adjustments to reconcile net income to net cash used by operating activities:
 Provision for loan losses - 5,040
 Depreciation and net (accretion) amortization (1,401) 2,638
 Amoritzation of debt issuance costs 47 67
 Net amortization of premiums and discounts on investment securities 287 217
 Loss on disposal of fixed assets 528 139
 Originations of loans held for sale (435,802) (562,628)
 Proceeds from sales of loans held for sale 413,781 546,519
 Gain on sale of loans held for sale (12,152) (20,413)
 Issuance of common stock to ESOP 1,032 924
 Issuance of common stock for board compensation 515 408
 Income from bank owned life insurance (301) (267)
 Gain on sale of foreclosed assets - (12)
 Loss on debt extinguishment - 310

 Changes in assets and liabilities:
     Decrease (increase) in other assets 975 (637)
     Decrease (increase) in accrued interest receivable 862 (1,332)
     (Decrease) increase in accrued expenses and other liabilities (454) 867
     (Decrease) increase in accrued interest payable (141) 91
          Net cash used in operating activities (16,069) (12,821) 

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES: 
Proceeds from maturities, calls, and repayments of investment securities available for sale 452 420

  Proceeds from maturities, calls, and repayments of investments securities held to maturity 6,975 -
  Purchases of investment securities held to maturity (20,592) (7,023)
  Purchases of bank owned life insurance (5,000) -
  Proceeds from (purchase of) Federal Home Loan Bank and Federal Reserve stock 254 (34)
  Net decrease (increase) in loans 94,158 (162,926)
  Purchases of premises and equipment (1,301) (604)
  Proceeds from sales of foreclosed assets - 175

          Net cash provided by (used in) investing activities 74,946 (169,992) 

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES:
  Net decrease in short term borrowings (80) (251)
  Repayments of long-term borrowings (30) (18,030)
  Issuance of subordinated debt, net of issuance costs - 17,549
  Net increase in deposit accounts 217,995 229,632
  Cash distributions to shareholders (11,761) (8,330)

          Net cash provided by financing activities 206,124 220,570 

See accompanying notes. 
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NORTH STATE BANCORP 
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS (Continued) 
Years Ended December 31, 2021 and 2020 

December 31, 
2021 2020 

(Dollars in thousands) 

NET INCREASE IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS $ 265,001 $ 37,757 

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS BEGINNING 110,566 72,809 

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS ENDING $ 375,567 $ 110,566 

SUPPLEMENTAL DISCLOSURES OF CASH FLOW INFORMATION
 Interest paid $ 3,506 $ 4,375 

SUPPLEMENTAL DISCLOSURES OF NONCASH INVESTING ACTIVITIES
 Unrealized (loss) gain on investment securities available for sale 
 Transfer of loans to foreclosed assets 

$ (44) $ 37 
- 163

 Transfer of mortgage loans held for sale to held for investment 
 Change in unexchanged common stock 

54,455 
(122) 

25,502
(523) 

See accompanying notes. 
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NORTH STATE BANCORP 
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
Years Ended December 31, 2021 and 2020 

NOTE A - ORGANIZATION AND OPERATIONS 

On June 28, 2002, North State Bancorp (the “Company”) was formed as a holding company for North State Bank (the “Bank”).  Upon 
formation, one share of the Company’s $1.00 par value common stock was exchanged for each of the outstanding shares of the Bank’s 
$5.00 par value common stock. On May 9, 2007, the Company’s shareholders approved the decrease of the Company’s par value of 
common stock from $1.00 per share to no par value per share.  The Company currently has no operations and conducts no business on its 
own other than owning the Bank, North State Statutory Trust I, North State Statutory Trust II and North State Statutory Trust III, all of 
which are wholly owned by the Company. The Company is subject to the rules and regulations of the Federal Reserve Bank and the 
North Carolina Commissioner of Banks. During 2015, the Company’s Board of Directors approved a plan of reorganization providing 
for the reorganization of the Company’s ownership that would permit the Company to qualify for an election under Subchapter S of 
the Internal Revenue Code of 1986 (“IRC”). 

The Bank was incorporated May 25, 2000, and began banking operations on June 1, 2000. The Bank is engaged in general commercial 
and retail banking in central North Carolina, principally Wake County, and in southeast North Carolina in New Hanover County, 
operating under the banking laws of North Carolina and the rules and regulations of the Federal Reserve Bank and the North Carolina 
Commissioner of Banks. The Bank undergoes periodic examinations by those regulatory authorities. The Bank’s wholly owned 
subsidiary, North State Wealth Advisors, Inc., offers wealth management and brokerage services. North State Bank Mortgage (“NSB 
Mortgage”), a division of the Bank, began operations during February 2010 for the purpose of originating and selling single-family, 
residential first mortgage loans. During 2016, the Bank established a small business lending services division. A significant portion of the 
loans originated (generally 75%) are guaranteed by the Small Business Administration (“SBA”) under the 7(a) Loan Program. At 
management’s discretion, the guaranteed portion of these 7(a) loans is sold in the secondary market. In October of 2017, the Bank’s 
wholly owned subsidiary, North State Title, LLC purchased a 5% interest in North Carolina Title Center, LLC, a title insurance agency. 

NOTE B - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 

Basis of Presentation 
The accompanying consolidated financial statements include the accounts and transactions of North State Bancorp and its wholly 
owned subsidiary North State Bank. All significant intercompany transactions and balances are eliminated in consolidation.  North 
State Bancorp and its subsidiary are collectively referred to herein as the “Company”.  

Under Financial Accounting Standards Board (“FASB”) accounting standards for the consolidation of variable interest entities, North 
State Statutory Trust I, North State Statutory Trust II and North State Statutory Trust III are not included in the Company’s 
consolidated financial statements.  The junior subordinated debentures issued by the Company to the three Trusts are included in long-
term borrowings and the Company’s equity interest in the three Trusts is included in other assets. 

Use of Estimates 
The preparation of consolidated financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States 
of America requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and the 
disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses 
during the reporting period. Actual results could differ from those estimates. Material estimates that are particularly susceptible to 
significant change relate to the determination of the allowance for loan losses and valuation of foreclosed assets. 

Cash and Cash Equivalents and Certificates of Deposit with Other Banks 
For presentation purposes in the consolidated statements of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents include cash and due from banks 
and interest-earning deposits with banks (including certificates of deposit with other banks).  As discussed in Note I - Borrowings, the 
Company’s long-term FHLB advances are secured by cash of $850,000 and short-term repurchase agreements are secured by cash of 
$1 million. Certificates of deposit with other banks have a maturity of April 24, 2023 and bear an interest rate of 0.4%.  All 
investments in certificates of deposit are with FDIC insured financial institutions and none exceed the maximum insurable amount of 
$250 thousand. 

Investment Securities 
Available for sale securities are reported at fair value and consist of mortgage-backed securities not classified as trading securities or 
as held to maturity securities. Unrealized holding gains and losses on available for sale securities are reported in other comprehensive 
income. Gains and losses on the sale of available for sale securities are determined using the specific-identification method and are 
recorded in other noninterest income. Bonds for which the Company has the positive intent and ability to hold to maturity are reported 
at cost, adjusted for premiums and discounts that are recognized in interest income using a method that approximates the interest 
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NORTH STATE BANCORP 
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
Years Ended December 31, 2021 and 2020 

method over the period to maturity. Declines in the fair value of available for sale and held to maturity securities below their cost that 
are other than temporary would result in write-downs of the individual securities to their fair value.  If the Company does not intend to 
sell the security prior to recovery and it is more likely than not the Company will not be required to sell the impaired security prior to 
recovery, the credit loss portion of the impairment is recognized in earnings and the remaining impairment is recognized in other 
comprehensive income. Otherwise, the full impairment loss is recognized in earnings. The classification of securities is generally 
determined at the date of purchase. 

Certain equity security investments that do not have readily determinable fair values and for which the Company does not exercise 
significant influence are carried at cost. The Company has investments in the stock of the Federal Home Loan Bank of Atlanta 
(“FHLB”) and the Federal Reserve Bank (“FRB”) as a requirement for membership. All the equity securities are reviewed for 
impairment at least annually or sooner if events or changes in circumstances indicate the carrying value may not be recoverable. As of 
December 31, 2021 and 2020, the stock in these equity securities totaled $1.6 million and $1.9 million, respectively. Due to 
redemption provisions, the Company estimates that fair value equals cost. 

Loans Held for Sale 
Mortgage loans held for sale represent single-family, residential first mortgage loans on a pre-sold basis originated by our mortgage 
division.  Generally, commitments to sell these loans are made after the intent to proceed with mortgage applications are initiated with 
borrowers, and all necessary components of the loan are approved according to secondary market underwriting standards of the 
investor that purchases the loan. Upon closing, these loans, together with their servicing rights, are sold to mortgage loan investors 
under prearranged terms.  Loans held for sale are subsequently measured at the lower of cost or estimated fair value on an aggregated 
basis within the consolidated balance sheet under the caption “loans held for sale”. The Company recognizes certain origination and 
service release fees from the sale, which are included in fees from mortgage operations.  

The Company is exposed to certain risks relating to its ongoing mortgage origination business. The Company primarily enters into a 
best-efforts contract with mortgage loan investors under which the Company will deliver individual mortgage loans.  Under a best-
efforts contract, the Company is not contractually obligated to deliver a maximum principal amount of mortgage loans and is not 
required to pay a “pair off” fee on any delivery shortfall. Because the best-efforts contract does not have a specified underlying or 
determinable notional amount or does not require net settlement, the contract does not meet the definition of a derivative. The period 
of time between the issuance of a loan commitment and the closing and sale of the loan generally ranges from 30 to 60 days. Such 
interest rate lock commitments represent derivative instruments which are required to be carried at fair value. These derivative 
instruments do not qualify as hedges under the Derivatives and Hedging topic of the FASB Accounting Standards Codification. 

The Company also will enter into mandatory delivery contracts with mortgage loan investors where the Company commits to deliver a 
specified principal amount of mortgage loans to an investor at a specified price on or before a specified date.  Failure to deliver the 
amount of mortgages necessary to fulfill the commitment by the specified date could result in the Company being obligated to pay a 
“pair off” fee, (depending on market conditions at the specified time of delivery, the investor may not charge a pair off fee). Based on 
these characteristics, the mandatory delivery contract meets the definition of a derivative at the time the Company enters the contract. 
The Company had $2.4 million of open mandatory delivery commitments as of December 31, 2021. 

The fair value of interest rate lock commitments is based on servicing rate premium, origination income net of origination costs, and 
changes in loan pricing between the commitment date and period end, typically month end. The gains and losses from the future sales 
of the mortgages are recognized when the Company and the borrower enter into the interest rate lock commitment and the resulting 
gain or loss is recorded in fees from mortgage operations. 

Loans 
Originated commercial and retail loans for which management has the intent and ability to hold for the foreseeable future are 
classified as held for investment and carried at the principal amount outstanding net of any unearned income, charge-offs and 
unamortized fees and costs. Nonrefundable fees collected and certain direct costs incurred related to loan originations are deferred and 
recorded as an adjustment to loans outstanding. The net amount of the nonrefundable fees and costs is amortized to interest income 
over the contractual lives using methods that approximate a constant yield. Interest income is recorded as earned on an accrual basis. 

The Company provides loans guaranteed by the U.S. Small Business Administration (“SBA”) for the purchase of businesses, business 
startups, business expansion, equipment, and working capital. All SBA loans are underwritten and documented as prescribed by the 
SBA. SBA loans are generally fully amortizing and have maturity dates and amortizations of up to 25 years. SBA loans may be 
originated and held for interest income purposes or, at management’s discretion, the portion of SBA loans that are guaranteed can be 
sold at a gain in the secondary market. If a guaranteed portion of an SBA loan is sold, the servicing rights are retained. The portion of 
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NORTH STATE BANCORP 
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
Years Ended December 31, 2021 and 2020 

SBA loans that are retained (the unguaranteed portion) are also adjusted for a retained discount to reflect the effective interest rate on 
the retained unguaranteed portion of the loans if a sale takes place. Additionally, the Company defers direct origination costs on these 
loans. When a guaranteed portion of a loan is sold, the guaranteed portion of the deferred cost is recognized in the income statement 
as a reduction to the overall gain on sale as well as an increase in the retained discount.  The remaining deferred cost on the 
unguaranteed portion amortizes into interest income in a manner which reflects the effective interest rate on the retained unguaranteed 
portion of the loan.  The net value of the retained loans is included in the appropriate loan classification for disclosure purposes. These 
loans are primarily commercial real estate or commercial and industrial. 

The Small Business Administration Paycheck Protection Program (“PPP”) is central to the Coronavirus Aid Relief and Economic 
Security Act (the “CARES Act”), which was passed on March 27, 2020 (“Round 1”), in response to the outbreak of coronavirus 
(“COVID-19”) and was supplemented with subsequent legislation. Overseen by the United States Treasury Department, the program 
offers cash-flow assistance to nonprofit and small business employers through guaranteed loans for expenses incurred between 
prescribed dates. Borrowers are eligible for forgiveness of principal and accrued interest on PPP loans to the extent that the proceeds 
were used to cover eligible payroll costs, interest costs, rent, and utility costs over a period of between eight and 24-weeks after the 
loan is made if the borrower retains its employees and their compensation levels. The CARES Act authorized the SBA to temporarily 
guarantee these loans. The SBA began processing forgiveness payments during the fourth quarter of 2020.  The Consolidated 
Appropriations Act 2021 was signed into law during the fourth quarter of 2020 and contained provisions for a second round of 
funding of SBA-PPP loans (“Round 2”).  The Company participated in both rounds of PPP.  PPP loan origination fee income is 
capitalized into the carrying amount of the loans and is deferred and recognized over the life of the loan (or up unto forgiveness, 
whichever comes first) and accrete into interest income using the effective interest method. 

Unsecured loans are charged-off against the Company’s allowance for loan losses as soon as the loan becomes uncollectible. 
Unsecured loans are considered uncollectible when no regularly scheduled monthly payment has been made within three months and 
the analysis of the borrower and any guarantors would indicate no further support can be provided, the loan matured over 90 days ago 
and has not been renewed or extended or the borrower files for bankruptcy. Secured loans are considered uncollectible when the 
liquidation of collateral is deemed to be the most likely source of repayment and the collateral or guarantors are deemed unable to 
repay any shortfall. Once secured loans reach 90 days past due, they are placed into non-accrual status. If the loan is deemed to be 
solely collateral dependent, the principal balance is written down immediately to reflect the current market valuation based on current 
independent appraisal/evaluation. Included in the write-down is the estimated expense to liquidate the property and typically an 
additional allowance for the foreclosure discount. Generally, if the loan is unsecured the loan must be charged-off in full while if it is 
secured the loan is charged down to the net liquidation value of the collateral. 

Loans, including impaired loans, are generally classified as nonaccrual if they are past due as to maturity or payment of principal or 
interest for a period of more than 90 days, unless such loans are well-secured and in the process of collection. Loans that are current or 
past due less than 90 days may also be classified as nonaccrual if repayment in full of principal and/or interest is in doubt (as 
determined by the contractual terms of the note). Loans may be returned to accrual status when all principal and interest amounts 
contractually due (including arrearages) are reasonably assured of repayment within an acceptable period of time, and there is a 
sustained period of repayment performance (generally a minimum of six months) by the borrower, in accordance with the contractual 
terms. 

While a loan (including an impaired loan) is classified as nonaccrual and the future collectability of the recorded loan balance is 
doubtful, collections of interest and principal are generally applied as a reduction to the principal outstanding. When the future 
collectability of the recorded loan balance is not in doubt, interest income may be recognized on a cash basis. In the case where a 
nonaccrual loan had been partially charged-off, recognition of interest on a cash basis is limited to that which would have been 
recognized on the recorded loan balance at the contractual interest rate. Receipts in excess of that amount are recorded as recoveries to 
the allowance for loan losses until prior charge-offs have been fully recovered. 

Troubled Debt Restructurings (“TDRs”) are loans that have been modified due to deterioration in the borrower’s financial condition, 
resulting in more favorable terms for the borrower. Accrual of interest is continued for restructured loans when the borrower was 
performing prior to the restructuring and there is reasonable assurance of repayment and continued performance under the modified 
terms. Accrual of interest on restructured loans in nonaccrual status is resumed when the borrower has established a sustained period 
of performance under the restructured terms of at least six months. 

Allowance for Loan Losses 
The provision for loan losses is based upon management’s estimate of the amount needed to maintain the allowance for loan losses at 
an adequate level. In evaluating the allowance for loan losses, the Company prepares an analysis of its current loan portfolio using 
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NORTH STATE BANCORP 
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
Years Ended December 31, 2021 and 2020 

historical loss rates, other identified factors, and data from its portfolio to calculate a general reserve for loan losses. The Company 
applies a charge-off rate based on charge-off history applied to twelve classes of loans in its current loan portfolio.  In addition, the 
Company has identified seven factors that are considered as indicators of changes in the level of risk of loss inherent with the 
Company’s loan portfolio. These factors are payment performance, overall portfolio quality utilizing weighted average risk rating, 
general economic factors such as unemployment, delinquency and charge-off rates, regulatory examination results, the interest rate 
environment, levels of highly leveraged transactions and levels of commercial real estate concentrations, which address the risks 
associated with construction, development and non-owner occupied commercial real estate lending.  Each of these factors is assigned 
a level of risk and this risk factor is applied to only the general pool of loans.  In addition to the general reserve calculation, all loans 
risk rated “substandard”, “doubtful” and “loss” are reviewed for probable losses. If management determines a loan to be impaired, it is 
removed from its homogeneous group and individually analyzed for impairment.  Other groups of loans may also be selected for 
impairment review.  A loan is considered impaired when, based on current information and events, it is considered probable that the 
Company will be unable to collect the scheduled payments of principal and interest when due according to the original contractual 
terms of the loan agreement. The measurement of impaired loans is generally based on the present value of expected future cash flows 
discounted at the original effective interest rate, or upon the fair value of the collateral if the loan is collateral dependent. If the 
recorded investment in the loan exceeds the measure of fair value, a valuation allowance is established as a component of the 
allowance for loan losses. 

While management uses the best information available to make evaluations, future adjustments to the allowance may be necessary if 
conditions differ substantially from the assumptions used in making the evaluations. In addition, regulatory examiners may require the 
Company to recognize adjustments to the allowance for loan losses based on their judgments about information available to them at 
the time of their examination. 

Premises and Equipment 
Premises and equipment are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation. Depreciation is calculated on the straight-line method over 
the estimated useful lives of the assets which are 3 to 10 years for furniture and equipment and 30 to 40 years for buildings. Leasehold 
improvements are amortized over the terms of the respective leases or the estimated useful lives of the improvements, whichever is 
shorter. Repairs and maintenance costs are charged to operational expense as incurred and additions and improvements to premises 
and equipment are capitalized. Upon sale or retirement, the cost and related accumulated depreciation are removed from the accounts 
and any gains or losses are reflected in current operations. Long-lived depreciable assets are evaluated periodically for impairment 
when events or changes in circumstances indicate the carrying amount may not be recoverable. 

Foreclosed Assets 
Assets acquired through, or in lieu of, foreclosure are held for sale and are initially recorded at fair value less anticipated selling costs 
at the date of foreclosure, establishing a new cost basis. Principal and interest losses existing at the time of acquisition of such assets 
are charged against the allowance for loan losses and interest income, respectively. The initial recorded value may be subsequently 
reduced by additional valuation allowances, which are charged to earnings if the estimated fair value of the property less estimated 
selling costs declines below the initial recorded value.  Costs related to the improvement of the property are capitalized, whereas those 
related to holding the property are expensed. Revenue and expenses from operations and changes in the valuation allowance are 
included in other expenses. The Company did not have any foreclosed assets as of Decembers 31, 2021 and 2020.  As of December 
31, 2021, there were no loans in process of foreclosure.  As of December 31, 2020, there were two loans totaling approximately 
$119,000 in unpaid principal balance that were in process of foreclosure. 

Bank Owned Life Insurance 
Bank owned life insurance is carried at cash surrender value as determined by the insurer. The carrying value of life insurance 
approximates fair value. 

Income Taxes 
During 2015 the Company’s Board of Directors approved a plan of reorganization providing for the reorganization of the Company’s 
ownership that would permit the Company to qualify for an election under Subchapter S of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986 
(“IRC”). The change in tax election enables the Company to take advantage of the favorable tax treatment afforded such entities 
under amendments to the IRC contained in the Small Business Jobs Protection Act of 1996 and subsequent amendments.  The effect 
of an S Corporation election is to eliminate one level of taxation. Under an S Corporation election, corporate income, gains, and losses 
are passed through to the shareholders and each shareholder’s pro rata share of Company income is reported on the shareholders’ 
returns whether or not any cash or property is actually distributed to shareholders. The Company was approved for Subchapter S status 
with the Internal Revenue Service effective date of January 1, 2016. 
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NORTH STATE BANCORP 
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
Years Ended December 31, 2021 and 2020 

SBA Servicing Assets 
All sales of SBA-guaranteed loans are executed on a servicing retained basis, and the Company retains the rights and obligations to 
service the loans. The standard sale structure under the SBA Secondary Participation Guaranty Agreement provides for the Company 
to retain a portion of the cash flow from the interest payment received on the loan. This cash flow is commonly known as a servicing 
spread. SBA regulations require the lender to retain a minimum 100 basis points in servicing spread for any guaranteed loan sold for a 
premium. The minimum servicing spread is further defined as a minimum service fee of 40 basis points and a minimum premium 
protection fee of 60 basis points. The servicing spread is recognized as a servicing asset to the extent the spread exceeds adequate 
compensation for the servicing function. Industry practice recognizes adequate compensation for servicing SBA loans as the minimum 
service fee of 40 basis points. The fair value of the servicing asset is measured at the discounted present value of the premium 
protection fee over the expected life of the related loan using appropriate discount rates and prepayment assumptions based on 
industry statistics. SBA servicing assets are initially recognized at fair value and amortized over the expected life of the related loans 
using the level yield method as a reduction of the servicing income recognized from the servicing spread. The servicing rights are 
periodically evaluated for impairment based upon the fair value of the rights as compared to carrying amount. If a temporary 
impairment exists, the servicing asset is written down through a valuation allowance and is charged against servicing income. Loans 
serviced for others are not included in the consolidated balance sheets.  There was no valuation allowance required to be established as 
of December 31, 2021, or 2020, respectively. 

Earnings Per Common Share 
Basic earnings per share represent income available to common shareholders divided by the weighted-average number of common 
shares outstanding during the period. The Company did not have any potential dilutive common shares for the years ended 
December 31, 2021 and December 31, 2020. 

Debt Issuance Costs 
Incremental costs directly incurred to issue the Company’s subordinated debt are recorded, net of cumulative amortization, on the 
Company’s consolidated balance sheets as a direct reduction of the carrying value of the related debt. 

Comprehensive Income 
Accounting principles generally require that recognized revenue, expenses, gains, and losses be included in net income. Certain 
changes in assets and liabilities, such as unrealized gains and losses on investment securities available for sale and unrealized holding 
gains on hedge instruments are reported as a separate component of the equity section of the balance sheet. Such items, along with net 
income, are components of total comprehensive income. The Company’s only component of accumulated other comprehensive 
income was unrealized gains and losses on available for sale securities. 

Derivative Instruments 
The Company’s deposit and loan activities are vulnerable to interest rate risk.  The associated variability in cash flows may impact the 
results of operations of the Company.  The Company’s hedging strategy is generally intended to take advantage of opportunities to 
reduce, to the extent possible, unpredictable cash flows.  The Company may employ a variety of common derivative products that are 
instruments used by financial institutions to manage interest rate risk.  The financial instruments that may be used as part of a hedging 
strategy include swaps, caps, floors, and collars. 

The Company does not enter into derivative financial instruments for speculative or trading purposes. Through its mortgage 
operations, the Company does enter into interest rate lock commitments. Such interest rate lock commitments represent derivative 
instruments which are required to be carried at fair value and recorded as other assets. 

Segment Reporting 
Management is required by accounting pronouncements governing the disclosures about segments of an enterprise and related 
information to report selected financial and descriptive information about reportable operating segments.  It also establishes standards 
for related disclosures about products and services, geographic areas, and major customers.  Generally, disclosures are required for 
segments internally identified to evaluate performance and resource allocation. Included as a division of the Bank, NSB Mortgage and 
our SBA division are reported as separate segments as well as the parent Company.  Segment information regarding the Bank, NSB 
Mortgage, SBA and the parent Company are fully described in Note Q.  The Company has no foreign operations or customers. 

Revenue Recognition 
Management is required by accounting pronouncements governing the recognition of revenue which require an entity to recognize 
revenue when it transfers promised goods or services to customers in an amount that reflects the consideration to which the Company 
expects to be entitled in exchange for those goods or services. 
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NORTH STATE BANCORP 
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
Years Ended December 31, 2021 and 2020 

Subsequent Events 
The Company has evaluated subsequent events through March 23, 2022.  

Recently Issued Accounting Pronouncements  
FASB ASU 2021-08 – Business Combinations (Topic 805): Accounting for Contract Assets and Contract Liabilities from Contracts 
with Customers: This ASU was issued to improve the accounting for acquired revenue contracts with customers in a business 
combination. Under current GAAP, an acquirer generally recognizes contract assets acquired and contract liabilities assumed in a 
business combination at the acquisition date fair value. This ASU will now require an acquirer to recognize and measure contract 
assets acquired and contract liabilities assumed in a business combination in accordance with FASB Accounting Standards 
Codification (ASC) 606, Revenue from Contracts with Customers, as if it had originated the contracts.  The effective date for this 
guidance is for fiscal years beginning after December 15, 2023, including interim periods within those fiscal years. The ASU should 
be applied prospectively to business combinations occurring on or after the effective date of the amendments.  The Company does not 
anticipate that the impact the adoption this guidance will have on its consolidated financial statements will be material. 

FASB ASU 2021-01 – Reference Rate Reform (Topic 848): The amendments in this Update clarify that certain optional expedients and 
exceptions in Topic 848 for contract modifications and hedge accounting apply to derivatives that are affected by the discounting 
transition. Specifically, certain provisions in Topic 848, if elected by an entity, apply to derivative instruments that use an interest rate 
for margining, discounting, or contract price alignment that is modified as a result of reference rate reform. Amendments in this 
Update to the expedients and exceptions in Topic 848 capture the incremental consequences of the scope clarification and tailor the 
existing guidance to derivative instruments affected by the discounting transition. The effective date for this guidance is upon 
issuance.  The Company is currently evaluating the impact the adoption this guidance will have on its consolidated financial 
statements. 

FASB ASU 2020-08 – Codification Improvements to Subtopic 310-20, Receivables—Nonrefundable Fees and Other Costs: The 
amendments in this ASU clarify that an entity should reevaluate whether a callable debt security is within the scope of paragraph 310-
20-35-33 for each reporting period. The amendments in this ASU affect the guidance in ASU 2017-08, Receivables—Nonrefundable 
Fees and Other Costs (Subtopic 310-20): Premium Amortization on Purchased Callable Debt Securities. The effective date for this 
guidance is for fiscal years beginning after December 15, 2021, and interim periods within fiscal years beginning after December 15, 
2022.  The Company is currently evaluating the impact the adoption this guidance will have on its consolidated financial statements. 

FASB ASU 2016-13, Financial Instruments-Credit Losses (Topic 326): Measurement of Credit Losses on Financial Instruments: In 
June 2016, the FASB issued new guidance that replaces the incurred loss impairment methodology in current standards with an 
expected credit loss methodology and requires consideration of a broader range of information to determine credit loss estimates. The 
guidance requires the measurement of all expected credit losses for financial assets held at the reporting date based on historical 
experience, current conditions, and reasonable and supportable forecasts and requires enhanced disclosures related to the significant 
estimates and judgments used in estimating credit losses, as well as the credit quality and underwriting standards of an organization’s 
portfolio. In addition, the guidance amends the accounting for credit losses on available-for-sale debt securities and purchased 
financial assets with credit deterioration. The guidance will be effective for the Company for the years beginning after December 15, 
2022, including interim periods within those fiscal years. The Company is currently evaluating the effect the implementation of the 
new standard will have on its consolidated financial statements. 

FASB ASU 2016-02, Leases (Topic 842): In February 2016, the FASB issued new guidance related to Leases which will require 
lessees to record as an asset on the balance sheet the right to use the leased asset and a liability for the corresponding lease obligation 
for leases with terms of more than 12 months. The accounting treatment for lessors will remain relatively unchanged. The guidance 
also requires additional qualitative and quantitative disclosures related to the nature, timing and uncertainty of cash flows arising from 
leases. The effective date for this guidance is for fiscal years beginning after December 15, 2021, and interim periods within annual 
periods beginning after December 15, 2022. Early adoption is permitted. The Company adopted this guidance on January 1, 2022. The 
adoption of Topic 842 resulted in the establishment of $2.8 million in right of use assets and $2.9 million in right of use liabilities 
related to the two operating leases and one finance lease that were identified during the adoption process. 

Other accounting standards that have been issued by the FASB or other standards-setting bodies are not expected to have a material 
impact on the Company’s financial position, results of operations or cash flows. 

Recently Adopted Accounting Pronouncements 
FASB ASU 2018-15 – Intangibles – Goodwill and Other- Internal-Use Software (Subtopic 350-40): This ASU amends and improves 
current guidance on accounting for implementation costs of a hosting arrangement that is a service contract. The amendments in this 
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NORTH STATE BANCORP 
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
Years Ended December 31, 2021 and 2020 

update align the requirements for capitalizing implementation costs incurred in a hosting arrangement that is a service contract with 
the requirements for capitalizing implementation costs incurred to develop or obtain internal-use software (and hosting arrangements 
that include an internal-use software license). The effective date for this guidance is for fiscal years beginning after December 15, 
2020, and interim periods within annual periods beginning after December 15, 2021. The Company adopted this guidance on January 
1, 2021, which did not have a material impact on its consolidated financial statements. 

FASB ASU 2021-03 - Intangibles – Goodwill and Other (Topic 350): Simplifying the Test for Goodwill Impairment: This ASU was 
issued in order to simplify the subsequent measurement of goodwill by eliminating the Step 2 goodwill impairment test. Under the 
amendments in this ASU, an entity should perform its annual or interim goodwill impairment test by comparing the fair value of a 
reporting unit with its carrying amount. An entity will then recognize an impairment charge for the amount by which the carrying 
amount exceeds the reporting unit’s fair value, however the loss recognized should not exceed the total amount of goodwill allocated 
to that reporting unit. Additionally, an entity should consider income tax effects from any tax-deductible goodwill on the carrying 
amount of the reporting unit when measuring the goodwill impairment loss, if applicable. The amendments in this ASU also 
eliminated the requirements for any reporting unit with a zero or negative carrying amount to perform a qualitative assessment and 
therefore the same impairment assessment now applies to all reporting units. An entity is required to disclose the amount of goodwill 
allocated to each reporting unit with a zero or negative carrying amount of net assets. The ASU did not affect the option to perform the 
qualitative assessment (Step 0) for a reporting unit to determine if the quantitative impairment test is necessary and private companies 
will still have the option to elect the PCC alternative on goodwill.  The effective date for this guidance is for fiscal years beginning 
after December 15, 2019.  The Company adopted this guidance on January 1, 2020, which did not have a material impact on its 
consolidated financial statements. 

16 



 
 

 

 

 
 

 
 

 

                                                                                            
                                                                                            

                                                                                          
                                                                                          
                                                                                  

 

                                                                                            
                                                                                            

                                                                                                    
                                                                                           
                                                                                   

 
 

  
 

 
  

  
 

  
  

 
 
 
 

NORTH STATE BANCORP 
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
Years Ended December 31, 2021 and 2020 

NOTE C - INVESTMENT SECURITIES 

The following table presents the amortized cost and fair value of securities available for sale and securities held to maturity with gross 
unrealized gains and losses as of December 31, 2021, and 2020, respectively. 

As of December 31, 2021 
Gross Gross 

Amortized unrealized unrealized Fair 
cost gains losses value 

          (Dollars in thousands) 

Securities available for sale: 
Government-sponsored residential mortgage-
 backed securities $ 4,283 $ 8 $ 39 $ 4,252 

Total securities available for sale $ 4,283 $ 8 $ 39 $ 4,252 

Securities held to maturity: 
Corporate bonds $ 2,250 $ 12 $ 35 $ 2,227 
Municipal bonds 41,311 854 188 41,977 

Total securities held to maturity $ 43,561 $ 866 $ 223 $ 44,204 

As of December 31, 2020
Gross Gross 

Amortized unrealized unrealized Fair 
cost gains losses value 

          (Dollars in thousands) 

Securities available for sale: 
Government-sponsored residential mortgage-
 backed securities $ 1,105 $ 13 $ - $ 1,118 

Total securities available for sale $ 1,105 $ 13 $ - $ 1,118 

Securities held to maturity: 
Corporate bonds $ 750 $ 5 $ - $ 755 
Municipal bonds 33,111 1,369 9 34,471 

Total securities held to maturity $ 33,861 $ 1,374 $ 9 $ 35,226 

All unrealized losses on investment securities are considered by management to be temporary given the credit ratings on these 
investment securities and the Company’s intent and ability to hold these securities to maturity. As of December 31, 2021, the 
Company’s available for sale securities included two Government-sponsored residential mortgage-backed securities with unrealized 
losses of approximately $39,000. The unrealized losses on held to maturity securities as of December 31, 2021 relate to twenty-nine 
tax-exempt municipal bonds; two corporate securities; and one taxable municipal bond with combined unrealized losses of 
approximately $223,000. As of December 31, 2020, the Company’s available for sale securities did not have any unrealized losses. 
The unrealized losses on held to maturity securities as of December 31, 2021 relate to three municipal bonds with unrealized losses of 
approximately $9,000. All unrealized losses on investment securities are not considered to be other-than-temporary, because they are 
related to changes in interest rates, lack of liquidity and demand in the general investment market and do not affect the expected cash 
flows of the underlying collateral or the issuer. Since the Company does not intend to sell the municipal bonds with unrealized losses 
prior to maturity and it is more likely than not the Company will not be required to sell any of these securities in unrealized loss 
positions prior to maturity, they are not deemed to be other than temporarily impaired. 

17 



 
 

 

 

   
 

 

                          

 
 

                                                                                                                                           
                                                                                                                                            

 
                                                                                                                                                

                                                                                                                                           
                                                                                                                                

                          

 
 

                                                                                                                                                             
                                                                                                                                                              

 
                                                                                                                                                                  

                                                                                                                                                           
                                                                                                                                                

 

 

 

NORTH STATE BANCORP 
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
Years Ended December 31, 2021 and 2020 

The following table presents the gross unrealized losses on and fair values of the Company’s investments as of December 31, 2021 
and 2020, respectively, aggregated by investment category and length of time that the individual securities have been in a continuous 
unrealized loss position. 

As of December 31, 2021 
  Less than 12 months 12 months of more   Total 

Fair Unrealized Fair Unrealized Fair Unrealized 
Value Losses Value Losses Value Losses 

(Dollars in thousands) 

Securities available for sale: 
Government-sponsored residential mortgage-
 backed securities $ 4,252 $ 39 $  - $  - $ 4,252 $ 39 
Total temporarily impaired securities $ 4,252 $ 39 $  - $  - $ 4,252 $ 39 

Securities held to maturity: 
Corporate bonds $ 2,227 $ 35 $ - $ - $ 2,227 $ 35 
Municipal bonds 41,544 181 433  7 41,977 188 
Total temporarily impaired securities $ 43,771 $ 216 $ 433 $  7 $ 44,204 $ 223 

As of December 31, 2020 
  Less than 12 months 12 months of more   Total 

Fair Unrealized Fair Unrealized Fair Unrealized 
Value Losses Value Losses Value Losses 

(Dollars in thousands) 

Securities available for sale: 
Government-sponsored residential mortgage-
 backed securities $ - $  - $  - $  - $  - $ -
Total temporarily impaired securities $ - $  - $  - $  - $  - $ -

Securities held to maturity: 
Corporate bonds $ - $ - $ - $ - $ - $ -
Municipal bonds 1,399  9  - - 1,399  9 
Total temporarily impaired securities $ 1,399 $  9 $  - $  - $ 1,399 $ 9 

18 



 
 

 

 

  

 

 
 

                                                    
                                               
                                            

                                             
                                       

                                                   
                                                 
                                              
                                           

                                   
                                   

 
 

  
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

NORTH STATE BANCORP 
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
Years Ended December 31, 2021 and 2020 

The following table presents the amortized cost and fair values of securities available for sale and securities held to maturity as of 
December 31, 2021, by contractual maturity.  Expected maturities will differ from contractual maturities because borrowers may have 
the right to call or prepay obligations with or without call or prepayment penalties. 

Securities available for sale: 
Government-sponsored residential mortgage-
 backed securities:

 Due after five but within ten years
 Due after ten years 
Total securities available for sale 

Securities held to maturity: 
Corporate bonds:

 Due after five but within ten years 

Municipal bonds: 
Due within three months
 Due after one but within five years
 Due after five but within ten years
 Due after ten years 

Total securities held to maturity: 

As of December 31, 2021 
Amortized Fair 

Cost Value 
(Dollars in thousands) 

$ 

$

739 
3,544
4,283 

$

$ 

746 
 3,506 
 4,252 

$
$

2,250 
2,250 

$ 
$ 

 2,227 
 2,227 

$ 

$
$

-
9,243 

13,778 
18,290
41,311 
43,561 

$

$ 
$ 

-
9,479

14,234
 18,264 
 41,977 
 44,204 

No securities were pledged as of December 31, 2021 or 2020. There were no security sales during the years ended December 31, 2021 
or 2020. 
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NORTH STATE BANCORP 
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
Years Ended December 31, 2021 and 2020 

NOTE D – LOANS  

The following table presents a summary of loans segregated by loan category as of December 31, 2021, and 2020. 

As of December 31, 
2021 2020 

Real estate secured loans: 
(Dollars in thousands) 

Residential construction 
Commercial construction, all land development 

and other land loans 
Residential properties 
Residential mortgage (1) 
Commercial real estate - other 

Total real estate secured loans 

$ 47,073 $ 

51,505 
139,798 
111,248 
460,242 
809,866 

45,051 

46,701 
118,575 
94,269 

427,812 
732,408 

Other non-real estate loans and leases: 
Commercial and industrial 
Consumer and other 

Total loans held for investment 

104,448 
3,668 

$ 917,982 $ 

219,209 
3,247 

954,864 

Single-family residential mortgages held for sale $ 7,218 $ 27,500 

(1) Single-family residential mortgages originated through NSB Mortgage held for investment. 

Loans are primarily funded in Wake County and New Hanover County in North Carolina. Real estate loans can be affected by the 
condition of the local real estate market. Commercial and installment loans can be affected by the local economic conditions. Included 
in the loan balances above are net unamortized loan costs of approximately $2.9 million and $370,000, respectively, as of December 
31, 2021 and 2020.  PPP loans are included in the ‘Commercial and industrial’ line item and totaled approximately $5.3 million and 
$97.8 million, respectively as of December 31, 2021 and 2020.  

The following describes the risk characteristics relevant to each of the portfolio segments. 

Residential construction 
The Company provides financing to builders for the construction of speculative and pre-sold custom homes, and from time to time, 
financing for custom homes where the home buyer is the borrower. Residential construction loans typically are for periods of 12 
months or less and the homes are sold to consumers who obtain permanent financing. The loans are underwritten utilizing independent 
appraisals, sensitivity analysis of absorption and financial analysis of the borrower. 

Commercial construction 
Commercial real estate construction and land development loans are also underwritten utilizing independent appraisals, sensitivity 
analysis of absorption and financial analysis of the general contractors and borrowers. Commercial construction loans are generally 
based upon estimates of costs and value associated with the as-completed project. These estimates may be inaccurate. The loans often 
involve the disbursement of substantial funds with the repayment substantially dependent on the success of the ultimate project. 
Sources of repayment for these types of loans may be pre-committed permanent loans or sales of developed property.  

All construction loans are closely monitored by on-site inspections and are considered to have higher risks than other real estate loans 
due to their ultimate repayment being sensitive to interest rate changes, government regulation of real property, general economic 
conditions, and the availability of long-term financing.  
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NORTH STATE BANCORP 
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
Years Ended December 31, 2021 and 2020 

Residential properties 
Residential real estate secured loans are subject to underwriting based on the purpose of the loan. Residential real estate properties 
secured by income-producing property typically have a loan-to-value ratio of 85% or less. Residential real estate properties secured by 
the primary residence of the borrower typically have a loan-to-value ratio less than 90%. Also included are loans that are underwritten 
and secured by second liens and home equity lines of credit which are revolving extensions of credit that are secured by first or second 
liens on owner-occupied residential real estate.  

Residential mortgage 
Residential mortgage loans represent one-to-four family loans originated through NSB Mortgage and selected by the Company to be 
retained in its portfolio. These loans are subject to strict underwriting standards which, at a minimum, comply with Freddie Mac 
guidelines and have moderate loan-to-value ratios, typically less than 80% and with credit scores typically exceeding 720. In addition, 
the Company retains individual jumbo mortgages in excess of $548,250 originated through NSB Mortgage with similar underwriting 
guidelines to above. 

Commercial real estate - other 
Commercial real estate secured loans are subject to underwriting standards that focus on proper loan to value and cash flow to meet 
debt service coverage requirements.  Commercial real estate lending typically involves higher loan principal amounts, and the 
repayment of these loans is generally dependent on the successful operation of the property securing the loan or the lease income on 
the property securing the loan. Commercial real estate loans may be more adversely affected by conditions in real estate markets or the 
general economy. The properties securing the Company’s commercial real estate portfolio are either owner occupied, or non-owner 
occupied. Owner-occupied properties include professional practices, retail establishments, service companies and churches. Non-
owner-occupied properties include office, retail, industrial and multi-family rental properties. Management monitors and evaluates 
commercial real estate loans based on collateral, market area and risk grade criteria.  The Company also utilizes third-party experts to 
provide insight and guidance about economic conditions and trends within its market areas. 

Commercial and industrial  
Non-real estate secured commercial and industrial loans are underwritten after evaluating and understanding the borrowers’ ability to 
operate profitably and prudently expand its business. Underwriting standards are designed to promote relationship banking rather than 
transactional banking. Management examines current and projected cash flows of the borrower to determine the ability of the 
borrower to repay its obligation as agreed. Commercial and industrial loans are primarily made based on the identified cash flows of 
the borrower and secondarily on the underlying collateral provided by the borrower and tertiary, as applicable, the guarantors. The 
cash flows of borrowers, however, may not be as expected and the collateral securing these loans may fluctuate in value. Most 
commercial and industrial loans are secured by the assets being financed or other business assets such as accounts receivable, 
inventory or equipment and usually incorporate a personal guarantee. In the case of loans secured by accounts receivable, the 
availability of the funds for repayment of these loans may be substantially dependent on the ability of the borrower to collect amounts 
due from its customers.  Included in commercial and industrial is a small lease portfolio.  The primary risk associated with lease 
financing is the ability of borrowers to achieve business results consistent with those projected at origination. Failure to achieve these 
projections presents risk the borrower will be unable to service the debt consistent with the contractual terms of the lease. 
Additionally, SBA loans and PPP loans are included within this category. 

Consumer and other 
Consumer and other loans include automobile loans, boat, and recreational vehicle financing, other secured or unsecured loans and 
loans to tax exempt entities. Consumer loans generally carry greater risk than other loans, even if secured, if the collateral consists of 
rapidly depreciating assets such as automobiles and equipment. Consumer loan collections are sensitive to job loss, illness, and other 
personal factors. The Company manages risks inherent in consumer and other lending by following established credit guidelines and 
underwriting practices designed to minimize the risk of loans. 

The Company maintains an independent loan review function that reviews and validates the credit risk program on a periodic basis. 
Results of these reviews are presented to management and the board of directors. The loan review process compliments and reinforces 
the risk identification and assessment decisions made by bankers and credit personnel, as well as the Company’s policies and 
procedures. 

The Company also originates single-family, residential mortgage loans that have been approved by investors in the secondary market 
which are included on the consolidated balance sheet under the caption “loans held for sale.” The Company recognizes certain 
origination and service release fees from sale, which are included in non-interest income on the consolidated statements of operations. 
As of December 31, 2021, and 2020, loans held for sale were $7.2 million and $27.5 million, respectively.  
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NORTH STATE BANCORP 
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
Years Ended December 31, 2021 and 2020 

Related party loans 
The Company engages in loan transactions with its directors and executive officers. Such loans were made in the ordinary course of 
business and on substantially the same terms and collateral requirements as those for comparable transactions prevailing at the time 
and did not involve more than the normal risk of collectability or present other unfavorable features. 

The following table presents a roll-forward of related party loans for the years ending December 31, 2021, and 2020. 

2021 2020 
(Dollars in thousands) 

Balance, beginning of year 
Additional borrowings 
Loan repayments 
Change in board members 
Balance, end of year 

$ 18,756 $ 21,350 
28,806 9,111 

(17,438) (11,727) 
3,084 22 

$ 33,208 $ 18,756 

Unused lines of credit $ 17,081 $ 7,014 

Nonaccrual loans 
Nonaccrual loans as of December 31, 2021 were $2.2 million compared to $3.6 million as of December 31, 2020. The approximate 
amount of interest income foregone on nonaccrual loans during the year was $191,000 and $185,000 for the years ending December 
31, 2021, and 2020, respectively. 

Past due loans 
The following table presents an aging analysis of past due loans segregated by loan class as of December 31, 2021, and 2020, 
respectively. 

As of December 31, 2021 
30 - 89 Days 

Past Due 
Over 90 
Days (1) 

Total Past 
Due Current 

Total 
Loans 

(Dollars in thousands) 

Real estate secured loans: 
Residential construction $ - $ - $ - $ 47,073 $ 47,073 
Commercial construction, all land 

development and land loans 
Residential properties 

-
30 

-
-

-
30 

51,505 
139,768 

51,505 
139,798 

Residential mortgage (2) 
Commercial real estate - other 

800 
-

-
1,393 

800 
1,393 

110,448 
458,849 

111,248 
460,242

 Total real estate secured loans 830 1,393 2,223 807,643 809,866 

Other non-real estate loans and leases: 
Commercial and industrial 79 831 910 103,538 104,448 
Consumer and other 
Total $ 

-
909 $ 

-
2,224 

-
$ 3,133 $ 

3,668 
914,849 $ 

3,668 
917,982 
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NORTH STATE BANCORP 
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
Years Ended December 31, 2021 and 2020 

As of December 31, 2020 
30 - 89 Days Over 90 Total Past Total 

Past Due Days (1) Due Current Loans 
(Dollars in thousands) 

Real estate secured loans: 
Residential construction $ - $ - $ - $ 45,051 $ 45,051 
Commercial construction, all land
   development and land loans - - - 46,701 46,701 
Residential properties - 468 468 118,107 118,575 
Residential mortgage (2) 1,268 119 1,387 92,882 94,269 
Commercial real estate - other 2,000 1,996 3,996 423,816 427,812
  Total real estate secured loans 3,268 2,583 5,851 726,557 732,408 

Other non-real estate loans and leases: 
Commercial and industrial 304 1,035 1,339 217,870 219,209 
Consumer and other - - - 3,247 3,247
  Total $ 3,572 $ 3,618 $ 7,190 $ 947,674 $ 954,864 

(1) All in nonaccrual status 
(2) Single-family residential mortgages originated through NSB Mortgage, held for investment 

Impaired loans 
The following table presents information regarding impaired loans segregated by loan class as of and for the year ended December 31, 
2021, and 2020, respectively. 

For the year ended 
As of December 31, 2021 December 31, 2021 

Unpaid Average Interest 
Principal Partial Recorded Related Recorded Income 
Balance Charge-offs Investment Allowance Investment Recognized 

(Dollars in thousands) 

Impaired with no related allowance recorded: 
Real estate secured loans: 

Residential properties $ 200 $ - $ 200 $ - $ 202 $ 8 
Commercial real estate - other 1,147 - 1,147 - 1,179 -

Total real estate secured loan 1,347 - 1,347 - 1,381 8 

Other non-real estate loans and leases: 
Commercial and industrial $ 1,766 $ (868) $ 898 $ - $ 956 $ 4 
  Total impaired with no related allowance reco $ 3,113 $ (868) $ 2,245 $ - $ 2,337 $ 12 

Impaired with a related allowance recorded: 
Real estate secured loans: 

Commercial real estate - other $ 246 $ - $ 246 $ 25 $ 248 $ -
Total real estate secured loan 246 - 246 25 248 -

Other non-real estate loans and leases:
  Total impaired with a related allowance recor $ 246 $ - $ 246 $ 25 $ 248 $ -

Total impaired 
Commercial $  3,159 $ (868) $ 2,291 $ 25 $ 2,383 $ 4 
Residential 200 - 200 - 202 8 

Total $ 3,359 $ (868) $ 2,491 $ 25 $ 2,585 $ 12 
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NORTH STATE BANCORP 
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
Years Ended December 31, 2021 and 2020 

Unpaid 
Principal 
Balance 

As of December 31, 2020 

Partial Recorded Related 
Charge-offs Investment Allowance 

(Dollars in thousands) 

For the year ended 
December 31, 2020 

Average Interest 
Recorded Income 
Investment Recognized 

Impaired with no related allowance recorded: 
Real estate secured loans: 

Residential properties 
Residential mortgage (1) 
Commercial real estate - other 

Total real estate secured loans 

$ 467 
119 

2,149 
2,735 

$ - $ 467 
- 119 

(152) 1,997 
(152) 2,583 

$ -
-
-
-

$ 468 
118 

2,151 
2,737 

$ -
-

17 
17 

Other non-real estate loans and leases: 
Commercial and industrial 

Total impaired with no related allowance recorded: 
$ 
$ 

3,140 
5,875 

$ (2,105) $ 1,035 
$ (2,257) $ 3,618 

$ 
$ 

-
-

$ 
$ 

1,911 $ -
4,648 $ 17 

Impaired with a related allowance recorded: 
Other non-real estate loans and leases: 

Total impaired with a related allowance recorded: $ - $ - $ - $ - $ - $ -

Total impaired 
Commercial
Residential 

$  5,289 
586 

$ (2,257) $ 3,032 
- 586 

$ -
-

$ 4,062 $ 17 
586 -

Total $  5,875 $ (2,257) $ 3,618 $ - $ 4,648 $ 17 

(1) Single-family residential mortgages originated through NSB Mortgage held for investment. 

Each loan risk rated “substandard”, “doubtful” and “loss” is reviewed to determine if it is an impaired loan.  If a loan is determined to 
be impaired, it is removed from its homogeneous group and individually analyzed for impairment. Other groups of loans based on 
facts and circumstances may also be selected for impairment review. If a loan is impaired, a specific reserve allowance is allocated if 
necessary. Interest payments on impaired loans are typically applied to principal. Impaired loans are charged off in full or in part when 
losses are confirmed. 

As of December 31, 2021, the recorded investment in loans considered impaired totaled $2.5 million. The Company provided specific 
reserves of $25,000 for probable losses on impaired loan balances of $246,000.  Management analyzed $2.2 million of impaired loans 
and determined the collateral to be adequate and no additional specific reserve allowance was necessary after recording approximately 
$868,000 in life-to-date partial charge-offs. Total impaired loans as of December 31, 2021 include $65,000 of restructured but still 
accruing loans and no restructured nonaccrual loans. 

As of December 31, 2020, the recorded investment in loans considered impaired totaled $3.6 million. The Company did not provide 
for specific reserves for probable losses on impaired loan balances as all impaired loans were deemed to be adequately collateralized 
under the Company’s policy. Management analyzed $3.6 million of impaired loans and determined the collateral to be adequate and 
no additional specific reserve allowance was necessary after recording approximately $2.3 million in life-to-date partial charge-offs. 
Total impaired loans as of December 31, 2020 include no restructured but still accruing loans and $79,000 of restructured nonaccrual 
loans. 

Credit Quality Indicators 
As part of the on-going monitoring of the credit quality of the Company’s loan portfolio, management examines certain credit quality 
indicators which consider the risk of payment performance, overall portfolio quality utilizing weighted-average risk rating, general 
economic factors, net charge-offs, non-performing loans, and the level of classified loans.  All loans risk rated “substandard”, 
“doubtful” and “loss” are reviewed on an individual basis for probable losses. 

A description of our credit quality indicators follows: 

Pass – loans with acceptable credit quality and moderate risk. 
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NORTH STATE BANCORP 
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
Years Ended December 31, 2021 and 2020 

Special mention – This grade is intended to be temporary and includes loans (1) with potential weaknesses if left uncorrected could 
result in deterioration or (2) classified as substandard accruing or substandard nonaccruing that have made improvements to their 
financial profile but do not yet meet the definition of a pass grade. 
Substandard, accruing – These loans have a well-defined weakness where the accrual of interest has not been stopped. The defined 
weakness may make default or principal exposure likely but not certain. These loans are likely to be dependent on collateral 
liquidation or a secondary source of repayment. 

Substandard, nonaccruing – These assets have well defined weakness that jeopardize the liquidation of the debt and are past due over 
90 days. The institution may sustain loss if the weaknesses are not corrected. These loans are inadequately protected by the paying 
capacity of the borrower, any guarantors or of the collateral pledged.  These loans are individually analyzed for impairment. 

Doubtful – These loans have all the weaknesses of substandard, nonaccruing plus the added characteristic that the weaknesses make 
collection or liquidation in full based on currently existing facts, conditions and values, highly questionable and improbable. 

Loss – These loans are considered uncollectable and of such little value that their continuance as a bankable asset is not warranted. 
This classification does not mean that the asset has absolutely no recovery or salvage value, but rather that it is not practical or 
desirable to defer writing off the asset even though partial recovery may be affected in the future. 

The following table presents information regarding the Company’s credit risk by internally assigned risk grades as of December 31, 
2021, and 2020, respectively. 

As of December 31, 2021 
Real Estate Loans Non-Real Estate Loans 

Construction Residential Residential Commercial  & Consumer & 
Residential Commercial Properties Mortgage (1) Commercial Industrial Other Total 

(Dollars in thousands) 

Pass $ 47,073 $ 51,435 $ 138,248 $ 111,248 $ 455,299 $ 103,512 $ 3,668 $ 910,483 
Special mention - 70 1,550 - 3,550 105 - 5,275 
Substandard nonaccruing - - - - 1,393 831 - 2,224

 Total by exposure $ 47,073 $ 51,505 $ 139,798 $ 111,248 $ 460,242 $ 104,448 $ 3,668 $ 917,982 

As of December 31, 2020 
Real Estate Loans Non-Real Estate Loans 

Construction Residential Residential Commercial  & Consumer & 
Residential Commercial Properties Mortgage (1) Commercial Industrial Other Total 

(Dollars in thousands) 

Pass $ 45,051 $ 46,618 $ 115,381 $ 94,269 $ 416,409 $ 217,636 $ 3,247 $ 938,611 
Special mention - 83 2,607 - 9,407 538 - 12,635 
Substandard nonaccruing - - 587 - 1,996 1,035 - 3,618

 Total by exposure $ 45,051 $ 46,701 $ 118,575 $ 94,269 $ 427,812 $ 219,209 $ 3,247 $ 954,864 

(1) Single-family residential mortgages originated through NSB Mortgage, held for investment. 

TDR loans generally occur when a borrower is experiencing, or is expected to experience, financial difficulties in the near-term. As a 
result, a concessionary modification with more favorable terms that would not otherwise be considered may be granted to the 
borrower with the intent to prevent further difficulties and improve the likelihood of recovery of the loan. The modifications resulting 
in a TDR have generally involved a reduction of interest rate or extension of term of the loan or a combination of both. We do not 
generally forgive principal as part of a loan modification.  Also, when possible, additional collateral or guarantor support is obtained 
when modifying the loan. All TDRs are individually reviewed and analyzed for impairment during management’s monthly evaluation 
of the allowance for loan losses. The specific allowance is based on the present value of expected cash flows or the fair value of the 
collateral or the loan’s observable market price. 

There was one modification made to a loan with an outstanding unpaid principal balance of $65,000 that resulted in a new TDR 
during the year ending December 31, 2021. There were no modifications resulting in new TDRs during the year ending December 31, 
2020.  Additionally, there were no TDR defaults during the last twelve months. 
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NORTH STATE BANCORP 
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
Years Ended December 31, 2021 and 2020 

On March 27, 2020, the Coronavirus Aid, Relief, and Economic Security Act (CARES Act) was signed into law. Section 4013 of the 
CARES Act, “Temporary Relief from Troubled Debt Restructurings,” provides banks the option to temporarily suspend certain 
requirements under U.S. GAAP related to troubled debt restructurings (TDR) for a limited period of time to account for the effects of 
COVID-19. The Company elected this guidance during 2021 and 2020. There was approximately $354,000 and $13.1 million in 
outstanding unpaid principal balance of Section 4013 loans as of December 31, 2021 and 2020, respectively.  The temporary relief 
provided by Section 4013 lapsed as of January 1, 2022. 

NOTE E - ALLOWANCE FOR LOAN LOSSES 

The following table presents activity in the allowance for loan losses by loan category for the years ended December 31, 2021, and 
2020, respectively.  Allocation of a portion of the allowance to one class of loan does not preclude its availability to absorb losses in 
other classes. For both 2021 and 2020, PPP loans are included within the Commercial & Industrial column.  

As of and for the Year Ended December 31, 2021 
Real Estate Loans Non-Real Estate Loans 

Construction Residential Residential Commercial  & Consumer & 

Allowance for loan losses: 

Residential Commercial Properties Mortgage (1) Commercial 
(Dollars in thousands) 

Industrial Other Total 

Beginning balance 
Charge-offs 
Recoveries 

$ 294 $ 279 $ 799 $ 791 $ 3,074 $ 1,205 $ 76 
- - - (40) (272) (267) -
- - - 24 100 677 2 

$ 6,518 
(579) 
803 

Provision (recovery) 
Ending balance 

- - - - - - -
$ 294 $ 279 $ 799 $ 775 $ 2,902 $ 1,615 $ 78 $ 

-
6,742 

Ending balance, individually evaluated
    for impairment $ - $ - $ - $ - $ 25 $ - $ - $ 25 

Ending balance, collectively evaluated
    for impairment $ 294 $ 279 $ 799 $ 775 $ 2,877 $ 1,615 $ 78 $ 6,717 

Loans: 
Ending balance 
Ending balance, individually evaluated
    for impairment 
Ending balance, collectively evaluated
    for impairment 

$ 47,073 $ 51,505 $ 139,798 $ 111,248 $ 460,242 $ 104,448 $ 3,668 

$ - $ - $ 200 $ - $ 1,393 $ 898 $ -

$ 47,073 $ 51,505 $ 139,598 $ 111,248 $ 458,849 $ 103,550 $ 3,668 

$ 

$ 

$ 

917,982 

2,491 

915,491 

As of and for the Year Ended December 31, 2020 
Real Estate Loans Non-Real Estate Loans 

Construction Residential Residential Commercial  & Consumer & 

Allowance for loan losses: 

Residential Commercial Properties Mortgage (1) Commercial 
(Dollars in thousands) 

Industrial Other Total 

Beginning balance 
Charge-offs 
Recoveries 

$ 219 $ 201 $ 602 $ 634 $ 2,363 $ 841 $ 71 
- - - - (152) (3,347) -
- - 5 18 - 23 -

$ 4,931 
(3,499) 

46 
Provision (recovery) 
Ending balance 

75 78 192 139 863 3,688 5 
$ 294 $ 279 $ 799 $ 791 $ 3,074 $ 1,205 $ 76 $ 

5,040 
6,518 

Ending balance, individually evaluated
    for impairment $ - $ - $ - $ - $ - $ - $ - $ -

Ending balance, collectively evaluated
    for impairment $ 294 $ 279 $ 799 $ 791 $ 3,074 $ 1,205 $ 76 $ 6,518 

Loans: 
Ending balance 
Ending balance, individually evaluated
    for impairment 
Ending balance, collectively evaluated
    for impairment 

$ 45,051 $ 46,701 $ 118,575 $ 94,269 $ 427,812 $ 219,209 $ 3,247 

$ - $ - $ 467 $ 119 $ 1,997 $ 1,035 $ -

$ 45,051 $ 46,701 $ 118,108 $ 94,150 $ 425,815 $ 218,174 $ 3,247 

$ 

$ 

$ 

954,864 

3,618 

951,246 

(1) Single-family residential mortgages originated through NSB Mortgage, held for investment. 

As of December 31, 2021 and 2020, respectively, due to the potential economic impact of COVID-19, the Bank has created a special 
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NORTH STATE BANCORP 
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
Years Ended December 31, 2021 and 2020 

purpose general reserve category to address loans that may have a collective heightened risk due to the industry in which they operate 
or from government-mandated closures and/or limitations. This general reserve was established using management’s expectation of 
borrower performance and based upon a COVID-19 residual risk assessment surrounding the different industries in which the 
Company’s borrowers operate.  The COVID-19 general reserve contributed approximately $1.2 million and $1.3 million of the total 
$6.7 and $6.5 million allowance for loan losses as of December 31, 2021 and 2020, respectively.  

NOTE F - PREMISES AND EQUIPMENT 

The following table presents a summary of premises and equipment as of December 31, 2021, and 2020. 

As of December 31, 
2021 2020 

(Dollars in thousands) 

Land 
Buildings 
Leasehold improvements 
Furniture, fixtures and equipment 

$ 6,755 $ 
20,562 
1,591 

10,151

6,755 
20,869 
1,591 

 10,076 

Accumulated depreciation 
Total 

39,059 
(16,442)

$ 22,617 $ 

39,291 
 (16,373) 
 22,918 

Depreciation expense totaled approximately $1.1 million for both years ended December 31, 2021, and 2020, respectively, and is 
included in occupancy and equipment expense.  

As the business case arises, assets may be sold or disposed of in the normal course of business.  Net gains on sale or disposal are 
recognized in other income while net losses on sale or disposal are recognized in other expense. Losses on the disposal of fixed assets 
totaled approximately $528,000 and $139,000 for the year ended December 31, 2021, and 2020, respectively. 

The Company leases office facilities under non-cancelable operating leases.  The following table presents future minimum lease 
payments required under the leases as of December 31, 2021. 

For future years ending after 
December 31, 2021 

(Dollars in thousands) 

2022 $ 689 
2023 680 
2024 695 
2025 296 
2026 165 
thereafter 595 
Total $ 3,120 

Building and equipment rental expense totaled approximately $906,000 and $959,000 for the years ended December 31, 2021, and 
2020, respectively.  Lease expense is included in occupancy and equipment expenses. The Company currently does not have any 
related party lease agreements. The leases have various lease terms and some of the leases have annual renewal options which are 
deemed probable. 
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NORTH STATE BANCORP 
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
Years Ended December 31, 2021 and 2020 

NOTE G – DEPOSITS 

The aggregate amount of time deposits in denominations of $250,000 or more as of December 31, 2021, and 2020, was approximately 
$25.2 million and $27.8 million, respectively. 

The following table presents the scheduled maturities of time deposits as of December 31, 2021. 

As of December 31, 2021 
Less than $250,000 
$250,000 or more Total 

(Dollars in thousands) 

2022 $ 26,421 $ 19,307 $ 45,728 
2023 
2024 
2025 
2026 
2028 

$

5,527 
1,120 
2,042 

585 
1

35,696 $

3,595 
1,001 

962 
325 

-
 25,190 $ 

9,122 
2,121 
3,004 

910 
1 

 60,886 

NOTE H – SERVICING ASSETS 

Loans serviced for others are not included in the Company’s consolidated balance sheets.  The unpaid principal balances of the loans 
serviced for others was $110.8 million and $105.4 million as of December 31, 2021, and 2020, respectively. Servicing rights totaled 
$1.9 million as of both December 31, 2021, and 2020, respectively, and are included under other assets on the Company’s 
consolidated balance sheets. Amortization of servicing rights is based upon an effective yield method and can be accelerated by early 
loan payoffs.  Amortization totaled approximately $585,000 and $329,000 for the years ended December 31, 2021, and 2020, 
respectively.  

NOTE I – BORROWINGS 

The following table presents a summary of borrowings as of December 31, 2021, and 2020. 

As of December 31, 
2021 2020 

(Dollars in thousands) 

Short-term borrowings 
Repurchase agreements $ 239 $ 319 

$ 239 $ 319 

Long-term borrowings 
FHLB advances $ 518 $ 548 
Subordinated debentures 18,000 18,000 
Junior subordinated debentures 15,465 15,465 
Less debt issuance costs 410 457 

Long-term borrowings, net $ 33,573 $ 33,556 
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NORTH STATE BANCORP 
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
Years Ended December 31, 2021 and 2020 

The following table presents a summary of the trust preferred securities and related junior subordinated debentures outstanding as of 
December 31, 2021, and 2020. 

2021 2020 
Maturity 

Date 
Interest 

Rate 
(Dollars in thousands) 

North State Statutory Trust I 
North State Statutory Trust II 
North State Statutory Trust III 

$ 

$ 

5,155 $ 5,155 
5,155 5,155 
5,155 5,155 

15,465 $ 15,465 

4/17/2034 
4/15/2035 
12/15/2037 

3 mo LIBOR plus 2.79%, resets quarterly 
3 mo LIBOR plus 1.65%, resets quarterly 
3 mo LIBOR plus 2.75%, resets quarterly 

The following table presents a summary of the subordinated debentures outstanding as of December 31, 2021, and 2020. 

2021 2020 
Maturity 

Date 
Interest 

rate 
(Dollars in thousands) 

 Fixed-to-Floating rate subordinated 
notes $ 18,000 $ 18,000 11/1/2030 

Fixed 4.125% through November 1, 2025, thereafter, 
3 mo SOFR plus 390.5 basis points, resets quarterly 

Short-term Borrowings 
The Company had $239,000 and $319,000, respectively, of repurchase agreements outstanding as of December 31, 2021 and 2020. 
Securities sold under agreements to repurchase generally mature within one to four days from the transaction date and are secured by 
$1 million cash as of December 31, 2021 and 2020. These repurchase agreements are due within one year and are classified as short-
term borrowings in the accompanying consolidated balance sheets. Interest rates for repurchase agreements vary from 0.00% to 0.05% 
as of December 31, 2021. 

As of and throughout the years ended December 31, 2021 and 2020, the Company had no outstanding Federal Home Loan Bank 
(“FHLB”) short-term advances.  Currently, any advances are secured by loans available for collateralization. 

As of December 31, 2021, the Company had pre-approved available lines of credit totaling approximately $323.1 million with various 
financial institutions and the Federal Reserve for borrowing on a short-term basis, with no amounts outstanding at that date. These 
lines are subject to annual renewals with varying interest rates. 

Long-term Borrowings 
As of December 31, 2021, and 2020, the Company had $518,000 and $548,000, respectively, outstanding balances in the form of 
long-term FHLB advances.  These advances, fully maturing on October 7, 2025, fund a qualified Community Investment Program 
loan.  The Company pays 2.00% interest for the advance with the loan earning 4.00%. This advance is secured by $850,000 in cash as 
of December 31, 2021 and 2020. 

On March 17, 2004, the Company issued $5.2 million of junior subordinated debentures to North State Statutory Trust I (“Trust I”) in 
exchange for the proceeds of trust preferred securities issued by Trust I.  On December 15, 2005, the Company issued $5.2 million of 
junior subordinated debentures to North State Statutory Trust II (“Trust II”) in exchange for the proceeds of trust preferred securities 
issued by Trust II. On November 28, 2007, the Company issued $5.2 million of junior subordinated debentures to North State 
Statutory Trust III (“Trust III”) in exchange for the proceeds of trust preferred securities issued by Trust III.  The Company owns all 
the outstanding common securities of Trust I, Trust II and Trust III. The junior subordinated deferrable interest debentures are 
included in long-term borrowings and the Company’s equity interests in Trust I, Trust II and Trust III are included in other assets. 

On November 20, 2015, the Company issued $18 million of fixed-to-floating rate subordinated notes, maturing December 1, 2025 if 
not previously redeemed. Interest on the notes was 6.5% per annum through November 30, 2020 payable semi-annually in arrears. 
From December 1, 2020 until the maturity date or early redemption date, the interest rate resets quarterly to an interest rate per annum 
equal to the then current three-month LIBOR rate plus 487.5 basis points, payable quarterly in arrears. Interest on the subordinated 
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NORTH STATE BANCORP 
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
Years Ended December 31, 2021 and 2020 

notes was payable semi-annually on December 1 and June 1 of each year through December 1, 2020 and quarterly thereafter on 
March 1, June 1, September 1, and December 1 of each year through the maturity date or early redemption date. The first interest 
payment was made on June 1, 2016. The notes include redemption options for the Company beginning with the interest payment date 
of December 1, 2020 to redeem the subordinated notes in whole or in part upon giving required notice to the holders at a redemption 
price equal to 100% of the principal amount plus accrued and unpaid interest. Additionally, the Company has the option to redeem the 
notes due to a special event such as a change or prospective change in law that would prevent the deduction of the interest for federal 
tax purposes; or a subsequent event that could preclude the subordinated notes from being recognized as Tier 2 capital for regulatory 
capital purposes; or the Company could be required to register as an investment company. The subordinated notes are included in 
long-term borrowings and qualify as Tier 2 capital up to the redemption date. The Company furnished the required redemption 
notices and subsequently redeemed the $18 million of fixed-to-floating rate subordinated notes at the Company’s option on December 
1, 2020.  The result of this transaction included the repayment of $18 million in principal along with accrued interest. Additionally, the 
Company recognized approximately $310,000 of debt extinguishment costs related to the remaining capitalized debt issuance costs 
incurred during the initial debt offering.  

On October 29, 2020, the Company issued $18 million of fixed-to-floating rate subordinated notes, maturing November 1, 2030 if not 
previously redeemed. Interest on the notes is 4.125% per annum through November 1, 2025 payable semi-annually in arrears.  From 
November 2, 2025 until the maturity date or early redemption date, the interest rate resets quarterly to an interest rate per annum equal 
to the then current three-month SOFR rate plus 390.5 basis points, payable quarterly in arrears. Interest on the subordinated notes is 
payable semi-annually on May 1 and November 1 of each year through November 1, 2025 and quarterly thereafter on 
February 1, May 1, August 1 and November 1 of each year through the maturity date or early redemption date. The first interest 
payment was made on May 1, 2021. The notes include redemption options for the Company beginning with the interest payment date 
of November 1, 2025 to redeem the subordinated notes in whole or in part upon giving required notice to the holders at a redemption 
price equal to 100% of the principal amount plus accrued and unpaid interest. Additionally, the Company has the option to redeem the 
notes due to a special event such as a change or prospective change in law that would prevent the deduction of the interest for federal 
tax purposes; or a subsequent event that could preclude the subordinated notes from being recognized as Tier 2 capital for regulatory 
capital purposes; or the Company could be required to register as an investment company. The subordinated notes are included in 
long-term borrowings and qualify as Tier 2 capital up to the redemption date.  To qualify for Tier 2 capital, the subordinated notes 
must have an original weighted average maturity of as least five years and capital inclusion in Tier 2 capital will be discounted 20% 
each year after the remaining maturity is five years or less. 

The junior subordinated debentures for Trust I pay interest quarterly at an annual rate, reset quarterly, equal to 3-month LIBOR plus 
2.79%.  The debentures became redeemable in whole or in part on June 17, 2009, and on any January 17, April 17, July 17, or October 
17 thereafter.  Redemption is mandatory on April 17, 2034.  The Company has fully and unconditionally guaranteed the repayment of 
the trust preferred securities.  The Company’s obligation under the guarantee is unsecured and subordinate to senior and subordinated 
indebtedness of the Company. 

The junior subordinated debentures for Trust II pay interest quarterly at an annual rate, reset quarterly, equal to 3-month LIBOR plus 
1.65%.  The debentures became redeemable in whole or in part on March 15, 2011, and on any January 15, April 15, July 15, or 
October 15 thereafter.  Redemption is mandatory on April 15, 2035.  The Company has fully and unconditionally guaranteed the 
repayment of the trust preferred securities.  The Company’s obligation under the guarantee is unsecured and subordinate to senior and 
subordinated indebtedness of the Company. 

The junior subordinated debentures for Trust III pay interest quarterly at an annual rate, reset quarterly, equal to 3-month LIBOR plus 
2.75%.  The debentures are redeemable in whole or in part on March 15, 2013, and on any January 15, April 15, July 15, or October 
15 thereafter.  Redemption is mandatory on December 15, 2037.  The Company has fully and unconditionally guaranteed the 
repayment of the trust preferred securities.  The Company’s obligation under the guarantee is unsecured and subordinate to senior and 
subordinated indebtedness of the Company. 

Current Federal Reserve rules limit the aggregate amount of restricted core capital elements, including trust preferred securities that 
can be included in Tier 1 capital to not more than 25% of total core capital elements, net of goodwill, less any associated tax liability. 
Amounts of restricted core capital elements in excess of this limit may be included in Tier 2 capital. However, the aggregate amount 
of certain restricted core capital elements (including trust preferred securities), term subordinated debt and limited life preferred stock 
that can be included in Tier 2 capital is limited to 50% of Tier 1 capital. 

The Dodd-Frank Wall Street Reform and Consumer Protection Act of 2010 (the “Dodd-Frank Act”) changed the ability of bank 
holding companies to issue trust preferred securities and continue to count them as Tier 1 capital. Bank holding companies with total 
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NORTH STATE BANCORP 
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
Years Ended December 31, 2021 and 2020 

assets of less than $15 billion as of December 31, 2009, are permitted to include trust preferred securities issued before May 19, 2010, 
as Tier 1 capital. As such, the Company’s existing trust preferred securities are grandfathered as Tier 1 capital under the Dodd-Frank 
Act. 

NOTE J - INCOME TAXES  

There were no uncertain tax positions as of December 31, 2021 or 2020. The Company changed tax status to an S Corporation 
effective January 1, 2016.  The effect of an S Corporation is to eliminate corporate income tax. Corporate income, gains and losses are 
passed directly through to the shareholders of the Company in proportion to their per share ownership. As of January 1, 2021, the 
Company is no longer subject to corporate level taxation on unrealized built-in gains of $3.4 million because the five-year period has 
fully lapsed. No federal income tax was recognized in 2020 on unrealized built-in gains. 

NOTE K – OTHER NON-INTEREST INCOME AND OTHER NON-INTEREST EXPENSE 

The following table presents the major components of non-interest income for the years ended December 31, 2021, and 2020. 

For the year ended December 31, 
2021 2020 

(Dollars in thousands) 

Merchant and other loan fees $ 743 $ 368 
Service charges and fees on deposit accounts 283 279 
Income from bank owned life insurance 301 267 
Other 1,142 910

 Total other non-interest income $ 2,469 $ 1,824 

The following table presents the major components of non-interest expense for the years ended December 31, 2021, and 2020. 

For the year ended December 31, 
2021 2020 

(Dollars in thousands) 

Professional fees $ 698 $ 738 
Postage, printing & office supplies 205 242 
Advertising and promotion 756 858 
Telecommunications 556 445 
Directors fees 860 928 
FDIC insurance premiums 806 655 
Mortgage processing costs 370 467 
Donations 709 1,235 
Loss on disposal of fixed assets 528 139 
Other 1,988 2,142

 Total other non-interest expense $ 7,476 $ 7,849 

NOTE L - REGULATORY MATTERS 

The Bank, as a North Carolina banking corporation, may pay cash dividends to the Company only out of undivided profits as 
determined pursuant to North Carolina General Statutes Section 53-87. In conjunction with the Company’s S Corporation election, the 
Bank has and intends to declare dividends to the Company in an amount sufficient for the Company to pay distributions to its 
shareholders. However, the Bank is subject to strict regulatory and legal guidelines regarding capital adequacy, dividend policies and 
other restrictions and rules. Regulatory authorities may limit payment of dividends by any bank when it is determined that such 
limitation is in the public interest and is necessary to ensure financial soundness of the bank. During the years ending December 31, 
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NORTH STATE BANCORP 
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
Years Ended December 31, 2021 and 2020 

2021, and 2020, the Bank distributed cash dividends to the Company of $11.7 million and $10.6 million, respectively. 

The Company has and intends to declare distributions in an amount at least sufficient to enable shareholders to pay federal income tax 
and state income tax.  The Company is dependent on dividends from the Bank and is subject to strict regulatory restrictions like the 
Bank. During the years ending December 31, 2021, and 2020, the Company declared cash distributions to shareholders of $11.8 
million and $8.3 million, respectively. 

The Bank is subject to various regulatory capital requirements administered by federal and state banking agencies. Failure to meet 
minimum capital requirements can initiate certain mandatory - and possibly additional discretionary - actions by regulators that, if 
undertaken, could have a direct material effect on the Company’s consolidated financial statements. Under capital adequacy guidelines 
and the regulatory framework for prompt corrective action, the Bank must meet specific capital guidelines that involve quantitative 
measures of its assets, liabilities, and certain off-balance-sheet items as calculated under regulatory accounting practices. The capital 
amounts and classifications are also subject to qualitative judgments by the regulators about components, risk weightings, and other 
factors. Prompt corrective action provisions are not applicable to bank holding companies. As of December 31, 2021, the most recent 
notification from the FDIC categorized the Bank as well capitalized under the regulatory framework for prompt corrective action. To 
be categorized as well capitalized, the Bank must maintain minimum amounts and ratios. There are no conditions or events since that 
notification that management believes have changed the Bank’s category. 

In July 2013, the Federal Reserve Board approved and published the final Basel III Capital Rules establishing a new comprehensive 
capital framework for U.S. banking organizations. The Basel III Capital Rules, among other things, (i) introduce Common Equity Tier 
1 (“CET1”) as a new capital measure, (ii) specify that Tier 1 capital consists of CET1 and “Additional Tier 1 capital” instruments 
meeting specified requirements, (iii) define CET1 narrowly by requiring that most deductions/adjustments to regulatory capital 
measures be made to CET1 and not to the other components of capital and (iv) expand the scope of the deductions from and 
adjustments to capital as compared to existing regulations. The Basel III Capital Rules were effective for the Bank on January 1, 2015 
and are fully phased in as of December 31, 2021 and 2020. CET1 capital for the Bank consists of common stock, related paid-in 
capital, and retained earnings. In connection with the adoption of the Basel III Capital Rules, we elected to opt-out of the requirement 
to include most components of accumulated other comprehensive income in CET1. CET1 for the Bank is reduced by goodwill and 
intangible assets (intangible assets excluding MSAs and goodwill). 

Basel III limits capital distributions and certain discretionary bonus payments if the banking organization does not hold a “capital 
conservation buffer” consisting of 2.50% of CET1 capital, Tier 1 capital and total capital to risk-weighted assets in addition to the 
amount necessary to meet minimum risk-based capital requirements. The capital conservation buffer was fully phased in as of January 
1, 2019.  Basel III requires (i) a minimum ratio of CET1 capital to risk-weighted assets of at least 4.50%, plus a 2.50% capital 
conservation buffer, (ii) a minimum ratio of Tier 1 capital to risk-weighted assets of at least 6.00%, plus the capital conservation 
buffer, (iii) a minimum ratio of total capital to risk-weighted assets of at least 8.00%, plus the 2.50% capital conservation buffer and 
(iv) a minimum leverage ratio of 4.00%. 

Quantitative measures established by regulation to ensure capital adequacy require the Bank to maintain minimum amounts and ratios, 
as prescribed by regulations, of Total capital to risk-weighted assets, Tier I capital to risk-weighted assets, and CET 1 capital to risk-
weighted assets, as well as Tier I capital to average assets.  As of December 31, 2021, and 2020, the Bank met the respective capital 
adequacy requirements.  
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NORTH STATE BANCORP 
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
Years Ended December 31, 2021 and 2020 

The following table presents information regarding the Bank’s capital and capital ratios as of December 31, 2021, and 2020, 
respectively. 

Minimum to be well 
capitalized under prompt 

Actual corrective action provisions 
Amount Ratio Amount Ratio 

(Dollars in thousands) 

As of December 31, 2021 
Total capital to risk-weighted assets $ 103,062 11.83% $ 87,143 10.00% 
Tier I capital to risk-weighted assets 96,320 11.05% 69,714 8.00% 
CETI to risk-weighted assets 96,320 11.05% 56,643 6.50% 
Tier I capital to average assets 96,320 7.08% 68,055 5.00% 

As of December 31, 2020 
Total capital to risk-weighted assets $ 96,904 11.60% $ 83,570 10.00% 
Tier I capital to risk-weighted assets 90,386 10.82% 66,856 8.00% 
CETI to risk-weighted assets 90,386 10.82% 54,320 6.50% 
Tier I capital to average assets 90,386 7.71% 58,638 5.00% 

The Bank had a capital conservation buffer of 3.83 percent as December 31, 2021.  This buffer exceeded the 2.50 percent requirement 
and, therefore, results in no limit on distributions. 

The Bank qualifies as a U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development, or HUD, approved Title II supervised mortgagee and 
issues mortgages insured by HUD. For the years ended December 31, 2021, and 2020, the Bank was required to maintain $1 million in 
baseline adjusted net worth plus an additional net worth of one percent of the total volume in excess of $25 million of FHA single 
family insured mortgages originated, underwritten, purchased, or serviced during the prior fiscal year, up to a maximum required net 
worth of $2.5 million. The Company complied with the net worth requirements as of December 31, 2021, and 2020. 

NOTE M – OFF-BALANCE SHEET RISK 

The Company is a party to financial instruments with off-balance sheet risk in the normal course of business to meet the financing 
needs of its customers. These financial instruments include commitments to extend credit and standby letters of credit. Those 
instruments involve, to varying degrees, elements of credit and interest rate risk in excess of the amount recognized in the balance 
sheet. The contract or notional amounts of those instruments reflect the extent of involvement the Company has in particular classes of  
financial instruments. The Company uses the same credit policies in making commitments and conditional obligations as it does for 
on-balance-sheet instruments. 

Commitments to extend credit are agreements to lend to a customer as long as there is no violation of conditions established in the 
contract. Commitments generally have fixed expiration dates or other termination clauses and may require payment of a fee. Since  
some of the commitments are expected to expire without being drawn upon, the total commitment amounts do not necessarily 
represent future cash requirements. The Company evaluates each customer’s creditworthiness on a case-by-case basis. The amount of 
collateral obtained, if deemed necessary by the Company, upon extension of credit is based on management’s credit evaluation of the 
borrower. Collateral obtained varies but may include real estate, stocks, bonds, and certificates of deposit. The liability related to off 
balance sheet commitments is not considered material as of December 31, 2021 or 2020. 

33 



 
 

 

 

  

 
 

 

   
                  

                        
                        

                        
                  

 
 

 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
       

  

 
       

 
      

  

 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 

 

 
 
 
 

NORTH STATE BANCORP 
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
Years Ended December 31, 2021 and 2020 

The following table presents a summary of the contractual amount of the Company’s exposure to off-balance sheet credit risk as of 
December 31, 2021. 

December 31, 2021 
(Dollars in thousands) 

Financial instruments whose contract amounts represent credit risk: 
Undisbursed lines of credit $ 178,123 
Other commitments to extend credit 40,654 
Letters of credit 2,157 
Commitments to originate mortgage loans, fixed and variable 23,504 

$ 244,438 

NOTE N - FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS 

The Company utilizes fair value measurements to record fair value adjustments to certain assets and liabilities and to determine fair 
value disclosures.  Securities available-for-sale are recorded at fair value on a recurring basis.  Additionally, from time to time, the 
Company may be required to record other assets at fair value on a nonrecurring basis, such as impaired loans, servicing assets, and 
foreclosed assets.  The nonrecurring fair value adjustments typically involve application of lower of cost or market accounting or 
write-downs of individual assets. The Company groups its financial assets and financial liabilities measured at fair value in three 
levels, based on the markets in which the assets and liabilities are traded, and the reliability of the assumptions used to determine fair 
value. These levels are: 

 Level 1 – Valuations for assets and liabilities traded in active exchange markets, such as the New York Stock Exchange. 
Level 1 also includes U.S. Treasury, other U.S. government and agency mortgage-backed securities that are traded by dealers 
or brokers in active markets.  Valuations are obtained from readily available pricing sources for market transactions involving 
identical assets or liabilities. 

Level 2 – Valuations for assets and liabilities traded in less active dealer or broker markets.  Valuations are obtained from 
third party services for identical or comparable assets or liabilities.  

 Level 3 – Valuations for assets and liabilities that are derived from other valuation methodologies, including option pricing 
models, discounted cash flow models and similar techniques, and not based on market exchange, dealer, or brokered 
facilitated transactions. Level 3 valuations incorporate certain assumptions and projections in determining the fair value 
assigned to such assets or liabilities. 

Valuation of Assets and Liabilities Reported at Fair Value in Financial Statements 

The fair value of a financial instrument is the estimated amount at which the instrument could be exchanged in an orderly transaction 
between knowledgeable, unrelated, willing parties. The estimated fair value of a financial instrument may differ from the amount that 
could be realized if sold in an immediate sale such as a forced transaction. Additionally, the valuation of investments is more 
subjective when markets are less liquid due to the lack of market-based inputs, which may increase the potential that the estimated fair 
value of an investment is not reflective of the price at which an actual transaction would occur. 

Securities available-for-sale and interest rate lock commitments are recorded at fair value on a recurring basis. Additionally, from time 
to time, the Company may be required to record other assets at fair value on a nonrecurring basis, such as impaired loans, servicing 
assets, and foreclosed assets. The nonrecurring fair value adjustments typically involve application of lower of cost or market 
accounting or write-downs of individual assets. 

The following is a description of valuation methodologies used by the Company for assets and liabilities recorded at fair value, either 
on a recurring or nonrecurring basis.  
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NORTH STATE BANCORP 
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
Years Ended December 31, 2021 and 2020 

Investment Securities Available for Sale 
Investment securities available-for-sale are recorded at fair value on a recurring basis. Fair value measurement is based upon quoted 
prices, if available. If quoted prices are not available, fair values are measured using independent pricing models or other model-based 
valuation techniques such as the present value of future cash flows, adjusted for the security’s credit rating, prepayment assumptions 
and other factors such as credit loss assumptions. Level 1 securities include those traded on an active exchange, such as the New York 
Stock Exchange, U.S. Treasury securities that are traded by dealers or brokers in active over-the-counter markets and money market 
funds. Level 2 securities include mortgage-backed securities issued by government sponsored entities, municipal bonds, and corporate 
debt securities. 

Mortgage Banking Activity 
The Company enters into interest rate lock commitments and commitments to sell mortgages. Changes in the interest rate lock 
commitments subjected to recurring fair value adjustments are affected by changes in fallout rates and changes in the prevailing 
secondary market prices for like-kind mortgage loans. Additionally, the fair value of interest rate lock commitments is based on 
servicing rate premium, origination income net of originations costs, and changes in loan pricing between the commitment date and 
period end, typically month end.  The fallout rate measures the likelihood that an interest rate lock commitment will ultimately not 
become a closed loan held for sale. Factors contributing to the fallout rate include changes in prevailing interest rates from the time of 
the interest rate lock commitment as well as other factors such as lower than anticipated appraised values. As of December 31, 2021, 
the fallout rate averaged approximately 8% and the amount of fair value associated with these interest rate lock commitments was 
approximately $555,000.  As of December 31, 2020, the fallout rate averaged approximately 12% and the amount of fair value 
associated with these interest rate lock commitments was approximately $1.47 million.  The fair value associated with interest rate 
lock commitments is included in other assets. 

Loans 
The Company does not record loans at fair value on a recurring basis. However, from time to time, a loan is considered impaired and 
an allowance for loan losses is established. Loans for which it is probable that payment of interest and principal will not be made in 
accordance with the contractual terms of the loan agreement are considered impaired. Once a loan is identified as impaired, 
management measures the impairment in accordance with accounting standards. The fair value of impaired loans is estimated using 
one of several methods, including collateral value, market value of similar debt, enterprise value, liquidation value or discounted cash 
flows. Those impaired loans not requiring an allowance represent loans for which the fair value of the expected repayments or 
collateral exceed the recorded investments in such loans. As of December 31, 2021, the Company’s impaired loans were evaluated 
primarily based on the fair value of the collateral. Impaired loans where an allowance is established based on the fair value of 
collateral require classification in the fair value hierarchy. When the fair value of the collateral is based on an observable market price 
or a current appraised value, the Company records the impaired loan as nonrecurring Level 2. When an appraised value is not 
available or management determines the fair value of the collateral is further impaired below the appraised value and there is no 
observable market price, the Company records the impaired loan as nonrecurring Level 3. The unobservable inputs include collateral 
discounts in a range of 5% to 20% of appraised value. The valuation techniques for the Level 3 impaired loans are consistent with 
techniques used in prior periods. 

Foreclosed Assets 
Foreclosed assets are adjusted to fair value, less estimated costs to sell, upon transfer of the loans to foreclosed assets. The initial 
recorded value may be subsequently reduced by additional valuation allowances, which are charged to earnings if the estimated fair 
value of the property less estimated selling costs declines below the initial recorded value.  Fair value is based upon independent 
market prices, appraised values of the collateral or management’s estimation of the value of the collateral. When the fair value of the 
collateral is based on an observable market price or a current appraised value, the Company records the foreclosed asset as 
nonrecurring Level 2. When an appraised value is not available or management determines the fair value of the collateral is further 
impaired below the appraised value and there is no observable market price, the Company records the foreclosed asset as nonrecurring 
Level 3. The unobservable inputs include collateral discounts in a range of 5% to 20% of appraised values as well as an estimated cost 
to sell range of 6% to 8%. The valuation techniques for the Level 3 foreclosed assets are consistent with techniques used in prior 
periods. 

SBA Servicing Rights 
SBA servicing rights are initially recorded at fair value when loans are sold with servicing retained. These assets are then amortized in 
proportion to and over the period of estimated net servicing income. The servicing rights are periodically evaluated for impairment 
based upon the fair value of the servicing rights compared to their respective carrying amounts.  The Company estimates the fair value 
of its servicing rights using discounted cash flow models incorporating numerous assumptions from the perspective of a market 
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NORTH STATE BANCORP 
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
Years Ended December 31, 2021 and 2020 

participant including servicing income, servicing costs, market discount rates and prepayment speeds.  As a result of the valuation 
inputs, servicing rights are classified within Level 3 of the valuation hierarchy. 

The following table presents the balances of assets and liabilities measured at fair value on a recurring basis as of December 31, 2021, 
and 2020, respectively. 

As of December 31, 2021 

Securities available for sale: 
Government-sponsored residential mor
 backed securities 
Total securities available for sale 

tgage-
$
$

Total 

4,252 
4,252 

$
$

Level 1 Level 2 
(Dollars in thousands) 

- $ 4,252 
- $ 4,252 

$ 
$ 

Level 3 

-
-

Interest rate lock commitments $ 555 $  - $  - $ 555 

As of December 31, 2020 
Total Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 

Securities available for sale: 
Government-sponsored residential mor
 backed securities 
Total securities available for sale 

tgage-
$
$

1,118 
1,118 

(Dollars in thousands) 

$  - $ 1,118 
$  - $ 1,118 

$ 
$ 

-
-

Interest rate lock commitments $ 1,465 $  - $  - $  1,465 

The following table presents all assets measured at fair value on a recurring basis using significant unobservable inputs (Level 3) 
during the years ended December 31, 2021, and 2020. 

For the year ended December 31, 

2021 2020 
(Dollars in thousands) 

Balance, beginning of year $ 1,465 $ 388 
(Losses) gains included in other income (910) 1,077 
Balance, end of year $ 555 $ 1,465 

The Company may be required, from time to time, to measure certain assets at fair value on a nonrecurring basis in accordance with 
U.S. generally accepted accounting principles. These include assets that are measured at the lower of cost or market that were 
recognized at fair value when fair value fell below the carrying amount as of the end of the period under measurement.  
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NORTH STATE BANCORP 
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
Years Ended December 31, 2021 and 2020 

The following table presents the balances of assets and liabilities measured at fair value on a nonrecurring basis as of December 31, 
2021, and 2020, respectively. 

As of December 31, 2021 
Total Level 1 Level 2 

(Dollars in thousands) 

Level 3 

Impaired loans 
Servicing assets 

$ 
$ 

221 
1,865 

$ 
$ 

-
-

$ 
$ 

-
-

$ 
$ 

221 
1,865 

Total 
As of December 31, 2020 

Level 1 Level 2 
(Dollars in thousands) 

Level 3 

Servicing assets $ 1,918 $ - $ - $ 1,918 

NOTE O - EMPLOYEE AND DIRECTOR BENEFIT PLANS 

401(k) and ESOP Retirement Plan 
The Company has maintained a qualified 401(k) plan for regular full or part-time employees since June 1, 2000. On January 1, 2015, 
the Company amended its 401(k) plan and adopted a combined 401(k) and Employee Stock Ownership Plan (“ESOP”). The plan as 
amended consists of two components (1) a qualified stock bonus plan (ESOP component) and (2) a qualified cash or deferred 
arrangement, of which no part of can be invested in Company stock, (401(k) component). The purposes of the plan, as restated, are to 
enable eligible employees to (a) contribute up to an annual maximum as determined under the Internal Revenue Code, (b) share in the 
growth and prosperity of the Company, (c) accumulate capital for their future economic security, and (d) acquire beneficial stock 
ownership interests in the Company. The Company matches 100% of employee contributions, not exceeding 6% of the participants’ 
compensation, by contributing to the ESOP component of the plan, which is invested in Company stock. In addition, the board of 
directors can authorize additional discretionary contributions to the plan. The plan provides that employees’ contributions are 100% 
vested at all times. Company contributions are 100% vested for the years beginning on or after January 1, 2008. The expense related 
to the 401(k) and ESOP plan contributions for the years ended December 31, 2021 and 2020 totaled approximately $1.0 million and 
$924,000, respectively.   

Employment Agreements 
The Company has entered into an employment agreement with its chief executive officer to ensure a stable and competent 
management base. This agreement provides for benefits as spelled out in the contract and cannot be terminated by the Board of 
Directors, except for cause, without prejudicing the officer’s right to receive certain vested rights, including compensation. In the 
event of a change in control of the Company, as outlined in the agreement, the acquirer will be bound to the terms of this contract. 

In addition, the Company entered into a “separation benefit agreement” during July 2012 with its chief executive officer.  The benefit 
vests monthly over 72 months beginning July 31, 2012. Also, the Company entered into an additional “separation benefit agreement” 
with its chief executive during 2017 with a five-year vesting period beginning January 1, 2017. During 2013 and 2015 the Company 
entered into “separation benefit and executive bonus agreements” with select officers of the Company. Total compensation expense 
related to all the separation and bonus agreements totaled approximately $67,000 and $422,000, respectively, for the years ended 
December 31, 2021 and 2020. The liability related to the “separation benefit agreements” was $3.1 million and $3.1 million, 
respectively, as of December 31, 2021 and 2020.  The agreements provide for benefits as described in the contracts. 

The Company has entered into agreements with four executive officers and one non-executive officer that provides for severance pay 
benefits in the event of a change in control of the Company that results in the termination of such officers or diminished 
compensation, duties, or benefits. 
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NORTH STATE BANCORP 
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
Years Ended December 31, 2021 and 2020 

NOTE P - PARENT COMPANY FINANCIAL DATA 

The following tables present the condensed financial statements of North State Bancorp as of and for the years ended December 31, 
2021, and 2020, respectively. 

Condensed Statements of Financial Condition 
December 31, 2021 and 2020 

2021 2020 
(Dollars in thousands) 

Assets 
Cash and due from banks $ 1,141 $ 1,197 
Investment in North State Bank 96,745 90,746 
Investment in North State Statutory Trust I 155 155 
Investment in North State Statutory Trust II 155 155 
Investment in North State Statutory Trust III 155 155 
Other assets 3 125 
Total Assets $ 98,354 $ 92,533 

Liabilities and Shareholders' equity 
Other liabilities $ 143 $ 266 
Long-term borrowings 33,054 33,007 

Shareholders' equity 
Common stock 11,215 9,668 
Retained earnings 53,973 49,579 
Accumulated other comprehensive (loss) income (31) 13 
Total shareholders' equity 65,157 59,260 

Total liabilities and shareholders' equity $ 98,354 $ 92,533 

Condensed Statements of Operations 
Years Ended December 31, 2021  and 2020 

2021 2020 
(Dollars in thousands) 

Equity in undistributed earnings of bank subsidiary $ 6,043 $ 7,063 
Dividends received from bank subsidiary 11,672 10,610 
Interest income 12 15 
Interest expense (1,190) (2,065) 
Other expense (382) (375) 

Net income $ 16,155 $ 15,248 
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NORTH STATE BANCORP 
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
Years Ended December 31, 2021 and 2020 

Condensed Statements of Cash Flows 
Years Ended December 31, 2021  and 2020 

2021 2020 
(Dollars in thousands) 

Cash flows from operating activities: 
Net income $ 16,155 $ 15,248 
Adjustments to reconcile net income to net cash 

provided by operating activities: 
Amortization 47 67 
Proceeds from issuance of common stock to ESOP 1,032 924 
Issuance of common stock for board compensation 515 408 
Equity in undistributed earnings of subsidiary (6,043) (7,063) 
Loss on debt extinguishment - 310 
Changes in assets and liabilities: 
Decrease in other assets 122 250 
Decrease in other liabilities (123) (234) 

Net cash provided by operating activities 11,705 9,910 

Cash flows from financing activities: 
Repayments of long-term borrowings - (18,000) 
Issuance of subordinated debt, net of issuance costs - 17,549 
Cash distributions to shareholders (11,761) (8,330) 
Net cash used in financing activities (11,761) (8,781) 

Net (decrease) increase in cash and cash equivalents (56) 1,129 
Cash and cash equivalents, beginning 1,197 68 
Cash and cash equivalents, ending $ 1,141 $  1,197 
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NORTH STATE BANCORP 
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
Years Ended December 31, 2021 and 2020 

NOTE Q – BUSINESS SEGMENT INFORMATION 

The Company has four reportable business segments, the Bank, NSB Mortgage, SBA, and the parent Company.  The Bank is engaged 
in general commercial and retail banking in central and coastal North Carolina.  The Bank operates six full-service banking offices 
located in Wake County and one full-service office in Wilmington, New Hanover County, North Carolina.  NSB Mortgage, a division 
of the Bank, originates and sells single-family residential first mortgage loans. SBA, another division of our Bank, originates and sells 
loans (generally 75%) guaranteed by the Small Business Administration. The remaining segment consists of activities of the parent 
Company. Eliminations necessary to accurately report the operations of the Company are also included. 

The following table presents selected segment reporting information as of and for the years ended December 31, 2021, and 2020, 
respectively.  

As of or for the Year Ended December 31, 2021 
Bank NSB Mortgage SBA Parent Company Eliminations Total Company 

(Dollars in thousands) 

Interest income $ 32,894 $ 1,974 $ 9,427 $ 12 $ - $ 44,307 
Interest expense 2,215  - 7 1,190  - 3,412 

Net interest income 30,679 1,974 9,420 (1,178) - 40,895 
Provision for loan losses - - - - - -

Net interest income after 
provision for loan losses 30,679 1,974 9,420 (1,178) - 40,895 

Noninterest income 2,128 12,145 3,266 - - 17,539 
Noninterest expense 29,939 9,478 2,480 382  - 42,279 
Net income (loss) $ 2,868 $ 4,641 $ 10,206 $ (1,560) $  - $  16,155 

Total assets $ 1,232,013 $ 87,074 $ 76,300 $ 98,354 $ (97,886) $ 1,395,855 
Net loans 758,918 78,505 73,817 - - 911,240 
Loans held for sale - 7,218 - - - 7,218 
Goodwill - 141 - - - 141 

As of or for the Year Ended December 31, 2020 
Bank NSB Mortgage SBA Parent Company Eliminations Total Company 

(Dollars in thousands) 

Interest income $ 34,015 $ 2,342 $ 6,411 $ 15 $ - $ 42,783 
Interest expense 2,773  - 5 2,065  - 4,843 

Net interest income 31,242 2,342 6,406 (2,050) - 37,940 
Provision for loan losses 5,040  - - - - 5,040 

Net interest income after 
provision for loan losses 26,202 2,342 6,406 (2,050) - 32,900 

Noninterest income 1,945 20,030 2,967 - - 24,942 
Noninterest expense 27,793 11,046 3,380 375  - 42,594 
Net income (loss) $ 354 $ 11,326 $ 5,993 $ (2,425) $  - $  15,248 

Total assets $ 934,594 $ 72,772 $ 164,787 $ 92,533 $ (91,943) $ 1,172,743 
Net loans 747,225 39,690 161,431 - - 948,346 
Loans held for sale - 27,500 - - - 27,500 
Goodwill - 141 - - - 141 
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